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This annual report provides information about the Queensland Police Services’ financial and non-financial performance information for 2021-22.  It has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019 and the Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies. 
Enquiries and further information
Telephone: (07) 3364 3616
Visit: www.police.qld.gov.au 
Email: QPS.Reporting@police.qld.gov.au 
This annual report can be obtained in paper form by calling 13 QGOV (13 7468) or online at www.police.qld.gov.au/corporatedocs/reportsPublications/annualReport/default.htm. 
Feedback
Feedback on the annual report can be provided through the Get Involved website: 
https://www.getinvolved.qld.gov.au/gi/
Other languages and formats
[image: ]The Queensland Government is committed to providing accessible services to Queenslanders from all cultural and linguistic backgrounds.  If you have difficulty understanding the annual report, you can contact us on telephone 
(07) 3364 3616 or freecall the Translating and Interpreting Service (TIS National) on telephone number 131 450 and an interpreter will be arranged to communicate the report to you. 
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Information about overseas travel and the Queensland Language Services Policy for 2021-22 is available on the Queensland Government Open Data Portal (www.data.qld.gov.au).  

The QPS did not engage any consultants in 2021-22.  

[bookmark: _Hlk83286533]Acknowledgement of Country
The Queensland Police Service respectfully acknowledge First Nations peoples as the Traditional Owners and Custodians of Queensland.  We recognise their connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them, their cultures, and to their Elders, past, present and emerging. 


[bookmark: _Hlk113366302]Commissioner’s message
In my third year as Queensland’s Police Commissioner, I feel incredibly proud of how the QPS has responded to a constantly evolving and complex policing environment.  
The first report from the Women’s Safety Justice Taskforce, containing 89 recommendations, was released in December 2021. The QPS welcomes reform and is committed to continuous learning and improvement and will be working with the Queensland Government to implement the recommendations to improve policing responses to domestic and family violence. The second report from the Taskforce was released on 1 July 2022 and contains 188 recommendations.  
The QPS Service Alignment Program, which has since transitioned to the Service Delivery Program, commenced implementing the recommendations arising out of the QPS Strategic Review, released in 2020. Among other things, the review highlighted the significant increase in demand for policing services and QPS resources being stretched across large geographical areas is not sustainable. This resulted in the establishment of the Regional Alignment Project which examined regional boundaries, identified benefits and opportunities and optimised service delivery to meet the demands of a growing Queensland. On 1 July 2021, the Service created the North Coast and Far Northern Regions to gain longer term efficiencies in terms of capacity, people, and performance where service delivery is aimed at prevention, disruption, response and investigation.  
The QPS continued to deliver outstanding frontline policing services and accomplish significant achievements that showcased the exceptional work and dedication of our members throughout 2021-22. I am continually amazed by the tremendous dedication of all members as the Service continues to meet the significant and increasing demands placed on our organisation.  
[bookmark: _Hlk113012380]Achievements for 2021-22 included: 
· [bookmark: _Hlk113000639]the Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Command delivering various bodies of work including: 
· the development and release of a High Risk, High Harm Dashboard to provide officers with analytics to identify and target high risk, high harm perpetrators
· partnering with the Department of Justice and Attorney-General (DJAG) to introduce legislative changes to limit the trauma involved in the criminal justice process and allow officers to use body worn cameras to obtain victim statements
· collaborating with DJAG to trial and evaluate a co-responder model involving joint responses between QPS and domestic violence specialists
· continuing to support and enhance policing responses to mental health
· QPS referring over 78,000 people to various support services
· establishment of the Youth Justice Unit within the Crime and Intelligence Command to deliver the QPS-specific work of the Youth Justice Taskforce. The existing Youth Justice Taskforce will focus on multi-agency collaboration and whole-of-government responses and reform to target youth offending in Queensland
· launching the Sexual Violence Response Strategy 2021-2023 to enhance the QPS’s capacity to prevent, disrupt, respond to, and investigate sexual violence and to hold perpetrators to account
· leveraging technology and providing a more agile policing response through the rollout of 10 mobile police beats to various locations across the state
· celebrating 25 years of civilian call centre operators which represents more than half of the total communication centre workforce
· [bookmark: _Hlk112912970]getting tough new laws and harsher penalties to protect police dogs and horses who work alongside our frontline officers to protect the community
· commissioning the Queensland Police Vessel (QPV) Sally Urquhart in honour of fallen police officer Sally Urquhart to honour Sally’s life and ensure her service to the QPS and community is never forgotten
· supporting and promoting Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Intersex, Queer+ pride within the QPS through the QPS Pride Network
· QPS being formally reaccredited as a White Ribbon workplace for a further three years in October 2021
· continuing to promote the ‘Our People Matter’ Strategy to support QPS members and delivering initiatives based on four pillars of Healthy Bodies, Healthy Minds, Safe Workplaces, Fair and Positive Workplaces
· conducting road policing operations to target the Fatal Five, curb negative road user behaviour and reduce Queensland’s road toll
· continuing to engage and improve communications with the community through various social media platforms.  
Since early 2020, when the COVID-19 pandemic was first declared, the QPS provided a first-class policing response to reduce the spread and severity of COVID-19, while largely maintaining business-as-usual policing operations, including: 
· standing up and deploying resources to the State Disaster Coordination Centre (SDCC) and Taskforce Sierra Linnet
· conducting border patrols at the state’s road border entries and at domestic and international airports including passenger screening
· conducting home quarantine checks and supporting Queensland Health’s contact tracing activities
· providing a security overlay at quarantine hotels
· the development and implementation of the border pass system that facilitated entry into Queensland
· rapid response planning and coordination to contain outbreaks of COVID-19. 
In 2022, various restrictions were eased by the Queensland Government resulting in the stand down of the SDCC and closure of Taskforce Sierra Linnet with COVID-related response activities transitioning to business-as-usual functions. I am grateful to all Queenslanders who worked with police and complied with directions during this challenging time. 
The staff and functions from the disestablished Public Safety Business Agency (PSBA) transitioned to the QPS and Queensland Fire and Emergency Services (QFES) on 1 July 2021. I welcomed the former PSBA staff that transitioned to the QPS and to the staff that transitioned to QFES, I offered my well wishes for their future careers. 
We also farewelled former Assistant Commissioners Brian Wilkins and Mike Condon in 2021-22. They had long-standing careers with the QPS spanning over 35 years each. They collectively delivered invaluable services to the community of Queensland, and I wish them well in their future endeavours.  
I am honoured to have led the QPS in 2021-22. I would like to thank the QPS Executive Leadership Team and our 17,000 plus members, police and staff alike, for their exceptional service, extraordinary dedication and commitment to our values of integrity, professionalism, community and respect and fairness to make Queensland the safest state.  
I also extend my gratitude to all Queenslanders for working in partnership with the QPS to build a safer Queensland for all. 


Katarina Carroll 
Commissioner 


About the QPS
The Queensland Police Service (QPS) is the primary law enforcement agency for Queensland.  It fulfils this role throughout the state, 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year, upholding the law and providing assistance to the community, particularly in times of emergency, disaster and crisis.  

Our Vision: Queensland – the safest State. 

Our Purpose: Together, we prevent, disrupt, respond and investigate. 

Our Accountabilities

Under the Police Service Administration Act 1990, the QPS is responsible for: 
· preserving peace and good order in all areas of Queensland
· protecting and supporting the Queensland community
· preventing and detecting crime
· upholding the law
· administrating the law fairly and efficiently
· bringing offenders to justice.  

Our Values

Consistent with the QPS Strategic Plan 2021-2025, QPS members value: 
· Integrity: Is in everything we do.  We are honest, trustworthy and hold each other to a high standard. 
· Professionalism: Times are challenging but if we are professional in everything we do, our communities will continue to support us. 
· Community: We support each other and lend a hand to ensure we can respond to community needs as well as the needs of our policing community. 
· Respect and Fairness: We treat each other and our communities as we would like to be treated ourselves – with fairness, dignity and respect. 
The QPS also shares the Queensland Public Service Values of: 
	[image: ]
	Customers first
· Know your customers
· Deliver what matters
· Make decisions with empathy
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	Ideas into action
· Challenge the norm and suggest solutions
· Encourage and embrace new ideas
· Work across boundaries
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	Unleash potential
· Expect greatness
· Lead and set clear expectations
· Seek, provide and act on feedback
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	Be courageous
· Own your actions, successes and mistakes
· Take calculated risks
· Act with transparency
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	Empower people
· Lead, empower and trust
· Play to everyone’s strengths
· Develop yourself and those around you



Our Objectives
The QPS contributed to the government’s objectives for the community by delivering quality frontline services that supported safe, caring and connected communities, to ultimately make Queensland the safest state.  The QPS did this through our focus on: 
· Our people to build a connected, engaged and job-ready workforce, with the health, wellbeing, and safety of our people a priority
· Our community to build a safer Queensland
· Our relationships to create a safer community and provide better services through connected and engaged relationships
· Our commitment to embrace new ideas and innovation to strengthen our capability to prevent, disrupt, respond to and investigate crime and deliver safe and secure communities 

Strategies
The QPS achieves its objectives through a range of strategies:
To build a connected, engaged and job-ready workforce, with the health, wellbeing, and safety of our people a priority, the QPS:
· delivered leadership that was agile, authentic, supportive, courageous, innovative, and visible
· established and maintained strong partnerships, openness, awareness, and accessibility
· delivered healthy, safe, positive, and inclusive workplaces with a diverse workforce that reflected the community we serve
· prioritised physical, mental and social wellbeing
· provided fit for purpose resources to support all our staff.
To build a safer Queensland together with our community, the QPS:
· delivered timely and professional responses to calls for service to maintain and strengthen community confidence through a community-centred approach to policing and crime prevention
· partnered with the community and other agencies to respond to overrepresentation in the criminal justice system, of victims and offenders, including vulnerable persons, young people, and victims of domestic and family violence. 
To create a safer community and provide better services through connected and engaged relationships, the QPS:
· maximised opportunities to prevent crime and enhance community safety through collaborative partnerships with government agencies, non-government organisations and community groups
· strengthened relationships with our people to better support us into the future
· protected the legitimacy of policing through fair and ethical service delivery.
To embrace new ideas and innovation to strengthen our capability to prevent, disrupt, respond, and investigate crime and deliver safe and secure communities, the QPS:
· delivered sustainable, effective, innovative, and efficient approaches to preventing, disrupting, responding, and investigating crime and delivering safe and secure communities
· prevented crime together by connecting our people, community, and relationships to collectively build a community culture of prevention and harm minimisation 
· disrupted crime together by educating our people, community, and relationships in strategies to identify and disrupt local, state, national and global crimes
· responded to crime together by improving our response capability through streamlining, technology, improved models of service delivery, continuous learning, business optimisation and digital transformation 
· investigated crime together by developing our people, community, and relationships to investigate crime in a global environment of complexity and ambiguity. 
The QPS also contributed to a range of local, state and national strategies on matters, including youth justice, domestic and family violence and vulnerable people, mental health, road safety, child safety, drugs and alcohol, counter-terrorism and organised crime. 

Queensland Government objectives
The QPS supports the government’s objectives for the community which are built around Unite and Recover – Queensland’s Economic Recovery Plan.  
· Safeguarding our health: Safeguard people’s health and jobs by keeping Queensland pandemic-ready.
· Supporting jobs: Support increased jobs in more industries to diversify the Queensland economy and build on existing strengths in agriculture, resources and tourism.
· Backing small business: Help small business, the backbone of the state’s economy, thrive in a changing environment.
· Making it for Queensland: Grow manufacturing across traditional and new industries, making new products in new ways and creating new jobs.
· Building Queensland: Drive investment in the infrastructure that supports our recovery, resilience and future prosperity.
· Growing our regions: Help Queensland’s regions grow by attracting people, talent and investment, and driving sustainable economic prosperity.
· Investing in skills: Ensure Queenslanders have the skills they need to find meaningful jobs and set up pathways for the future.
· Backing our frontline services: Deliver world-class frontline services in key areas such as health, education and community safety.
· Protecting the environment: Protect and enhance our natural environment and heritage for future generations and achieve a 50 per cent renewable energy target by 2030.



Our environment
The policing environment in Queensland continues to be characterised by rapid change and increasing complexity. As a result, our services are being challenged to meet evolving demands. The change in our environment is driven by shifting community expectations and rapid technological innovation, influencing our service delivery in a broader context. To keep pace with the rapidly evolving environment, police will continue to explore opportunities to develop and maintain strong community relationships, harness advances in technology to deliver high quality efficient policing services and develop collaborative approaches to increase community safety.  Further, as a service we will continue to remain agile with our response to severe weather events, climate change and emerging technologies impacting the criminal environment. 
In response, the QPS will: 
· maintain an agile partnership-oriented disaster management capability to plan for and respond to extreme weather events
· establish a specialist capability to enhance the QPS response to proactively target Money Laundering 
· continue to support the implementation and monitoring of the Third Action Plan of the Domestic and Family Violence Prevention Strategy 2016-2026 and contribute to the response to the Women’s Safety and Justice Taskforce First Report – Hear her voice
· promote multi-agency initiatives and partnerships to address and manage youth crime and recidivism including the Youth Justice Five Point Plan and regional initiatives in collaboration with the Department of Children, Youth Justice and Multicultural Affairs (DCYJMA)
· develop an Organised Crime Strategy 2022-26 to coordinate prevention, disruption, investigation and other responses to organised crime and associated harms impacting Queensland
· conduct research into victimology of persons who are victims of cybercrime to drive prevention and community resilience opportunities
· support inter-agency relationships to increase the proportion of offenders, particularly young people and vulnerable persons, diverted from the criminal justice system
· utilise and identify emerging technologies to benefit police, by improving interoperability between public safety agencies and enhancing operational effectiveness
· deliver modern, mobile and flexible policing through the introduction of mobile police beat vans and a range of other police resources. 
Our challenges and opportunities in 2021-22
The QPS acknowledges the importance of addressing a range of potential strategic challenges to ensure we keep Queenslanders safe.  The Service identified these challenges and opportunities to respond to in 2021-22, linking them to the strategic objectives.  
Key challenges for the QPS during 2021-22 included: 
· delivering an effective policing response to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic that upholds public health directives while maintaining strong community relationships
· maintaining an agile disaster management capability to plan for and respond to an increase in the frequency and/or severity of extreme weather events and natural disasters
· adapting to economic conditions while continuing to deliver high quality and efficient policing services
· adapting to keep pace with challenges presented by new and emerging technologies and their impact on the criminal environment and regulation of online information
· strengthening the integrity and professionalism of police to enhance community satisfaction, trust and confidence in the QPS, in an environment of evolving community expectations. 


To address these challenges, the QPS identified the following opportunities to best position the QPS to make Queensland the safest State: 
· leading the QPS service delivery model through a period of significant disruption by remaining agile to shifting demands and community safety needs
· championing collaborative approaches to promote outcomes for vulnerable people, and enhance social cohesion and community safety
· building upon organisational learning and experience from the COVID-19 pandemic response to improve business continuity during future significant events
· promoting a workforce which is flexible, inclusive and diverse, to enhance engagement and performance
· empowering the workforce by investing in their safety, mental health and wellbeing, and by proactively developing organisational capabilities to keep pace with future challenges.
2022-23 Outlook
The QPS in 2022-23 will work towards: 
· adapting to keep pace with challenges presented by new and emerging technologies and their impact on the criminal environment and regulation of online information
· strengthening the integrity and professionalism of police to enhance community satisfaction, trust and confidence in the QPS, in an environment of evolving community expectations
· delivering an effective policing response to COVID-19 that upholds public health directives while maintaining strong community relationships 
· maintaining an agile disaster management capability to plan for and respond to an increase in the frequency and/or severity of extreme weather events and natural disasters
· advancing the use of evidence-based policing strategies to deliver victim-centric, trauma-informed responses to victims and design strategic prevention activities
· continuing to support implementation of the Domestic and Family Violence Prevention Strategy 2016-2026 and contribute to the response to the first report of the Queensland Women’s Safety and Justice Taskforce, Hear her voice – Report one – Addressing coercive control and domestic and family violence in Queensland
· continuing to support the Queensland Government’s Youth Justice Strategy 2019-23 – Working Together, Changing the Story, to assist young Queenslanders to make positive life choices through crime prevention and early intervention
· continuing to implement recommendations from the Royal Commission into Institutional Responses to Child Sexual Abuse
· continuing to support the Queensland Road Safety Strategy 2022-31 through proven road safety interventions. 
For 2022-23, the QPS identified the following opportunities, including: 
· championing collaborative approaches to promote outcomes which are victim-centric and trauma-informed for vulnerable people, and enhance social cohesion and community safety
· promoting a workforce which is flexible, inclusive and diverse, to enhance engagement and performance
· empowering the workforce by investing in their safety, mental health and wellbeing, and by proactively developing organisational capabilities to keep pace with future challenges
· leading the QPS service delivery model through a period if significant disruption by remaining agile to shifting demands and community safety needs
· identifying innovative applications for new and emerging technologies in policing, while upholding community expectations around transparency, privacy and ethics. 


[bookmark: _Hlk114509184]Human Rights Act 2019
On 1 January 2020, the Human Rights Act 2019 (Qld) (the Act) came into effect, creating obligations for public entities to act and make decisions in a way that is compatible with human rights, and to give proper consideration to human rights when making a decision.  The QPS has made a commitment to respect, protect and promote human rights in our decision-making and actions. 
The QPS works tirelessly to ensure Queensland is the safest state, including exercising police powers embedded in legislation such as diversion, move on directions, detention and or arrest, in a way that least impacts on people’s rights while protecting the safety and security of the Queensland community.  
As part of this commitment, the QPS has taken steps to further the objectives of the Act including: 
· developing training products by Ethical Standards Command relating to the discipline process including instruction on human rights to reinforce the objectives of the Human Rights Act 2019 
· incorporating human rights in the draft Police Recruiting Management Manual, staff orientation packages and various recruit training curriculum materials
· embedding human rights in regular reporting and decision making through education, training and awareness. 
Human Rights complaints
Since the commencement of the Act, the QPS had updated its complaints and grievance policies, procedures and mechanisms to ensure human rights complaints can be recorded, assessed and responded to appropriately.  The QPS examines all complaints received by the QPS to ensure decisions made by the Service and its employees were compatible with the Act. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114210814]In 2021-22, the QPS recorded: 
· 1,184 complaints where it was identified that one or more human rights may have been unreasonably limited
· 1,552 possible human rights limitations (one complaint can include more than one human rights limitation)
· 48 instances where human rights were unreasonably limited resulting in:
· 12 apologies
· 1 managerial resolution
· 19 explanations
· 16 disciplinary actions
· However, in most cases, there was no further action taken as no human rights limitations were detected, or an explanation was provided to the complainant as the officers’ actions were identified as being lawful and reasonable. 
· 757 (of the 1,184) complaints were finalised as at 30 June 2022. 
Each time the QPS received a complaint, human rights limitations were assessed to determine if any rights were unreasonably limited.  The human rights aspect of each complaint was investigated along with the allegation/s, which assisted in determining the appropriate resolution.  
Notes: 
i. A human rights complaint is a complaint about an alleged contravention of Section 58(1) of the Act by a public entity in relation to an act or decision of the public entity (i.e. that an act or decision is not compatible with human rights and/or that a decision did not properly consider relevant human rights).
ii. It is expected that sometimes a complainant will not identify human rights matters within a complaint they make to the QPS. Where the QPS identifies that the complaint may include a contravention of Section 58 of the Act the QPS is expected to record this and respond appropriately.
iii. The total number of human rights complaints includes all those identified by a complainant and the QPS. A human rights complaint is counted as one regardless of the number of alleged acts, decisions or human rights limited within a complaint made to the QPS. 
iv. The total number of complaints where one or more human rights were allegedly unreasonably limited relates to all complaints made to the QPS by both internal and external complainants (refer page 51). 
v. As a result of the QPS refining the process and methodology for identifying and recording complaints involving a human rights component, the 2021-22 data cannot be compared with the previous financial year.
[bookmark: _Hlk114491666]Information security attestation
During the mandatory annual Information Security reporting process, the Commissioner attested to the appropriateness of the information security risk management within the QPS to the Queensland Government Chief Information Security Officer, noting that appropriate assurance activities have been undertaken to inform this opinion and the Service information security risk position. 
Machinery of government changes
Pursuant to the Public Service Departmental Arrangements Notice (No.1) 2022, the responsibility and functions of the Road Safety Camera Office (CDOP) was transferred from the QPS to Queensland Treasury in February 2022.  



[bookmark: _Hlk113614993][bookmark: _Hlk112151560]Our partners
The QPS continued to foster strong relationships with its partners in the community, including the Queensland Police-Citizen Youth Welfare Association, Neighbourhood Watch Queensland and Crime Stoppers Queensland.  
· [bookmark: _Hlk83133292]Queensland Police-Citizens Youth Welfare Association (QPCYWA)
The QPCYWA, commonly known as Police-Citizens Youth Club (PCYC), is a non-government, not-for-profit organisation that provides appropriate, affordable and accessible youth development programs and services to support young people in making positive life choices.
PCYC Queensland delivers services through Police-Citizen Youth Clubs located in various urban, rurual and remote communities across the state.  Each club is managed by a QPS Sergeant.  This encourages positive relationships in the community and fosters unique interactions and experiences between QPS officers and young Queenslanders. First established in 1948, there are now 54 PCYC clubs with 75 sworn officers and four staff members supporting operations.  For more information or to find a club near you, visit the PCYC website at www.pcyc.org.au.
· Neighbourhood Watch Queensland (NHWQ)
NHWQ is a partnership between the QPS and the Queensland community to enhance community safety. It encourages communities to join together in small informal groups to improve the safety of their families and other people who live, visit and do business in their neighbourhood. NHWQ is focused on enhancing home security, reducing the fear of crime and reporting suspicious activity to police. There are approximately 331 NHWQ groups located throughout Queensland.
The NHWQ blog provides daily NHWQ information from around the state.  For more information or to find your local NHW group, visit the NHWQ website at www.nhwq.org.
· [bookmark: _Hlk51571467]Crime Stoppers Queensland
Crime Stoppers Queensland is a community volunteer organisation that encourages the community to help make a difference in solving and preventing crime. It provides an avenue for the community to assist police to solve crimes.
Crime Stoppers Queensland provides a telephone hotline and website for community members to provide anonymous information about criminal activity. This information is sent electronically to the relevant police establishment for investigation in the area where the crime is occurring.
The QPS assists Crime Stoppers Queensland through the following: 
· the Assistant Commissioner, Crime and Intelligence Command is on the Board of Directors as the Commissioner’s representative
· a dedicated police unit manages the partnership deliverables, administers intelligence reports, handles investigator inquiries and assists Crime Stoppers State Office personnel with promotional displays and presentations as required
· police officers act as partnership representatives in many of the 24 Volunteer Area Committees spread throughout the state.
During 2021-22, the QPS Crime Stoppers Unit, in partnership with Crime Stoppers Queensland, continued to receive information from the public on criminal activity which resulted in: 
· over 12,500 phone and more than 16,600 digital contacts from members of the public
· the apprehension of 682 people
· more than 2,820 charges laid
· the confiscation of more than $792,000 worth of drugs
· the seizure of approximately $394,400 in proceeds of crime. 
For more detailed information, visit the Crime Stoppers Queensland website at www.qld.crimestoppers.com.au. 
· [bookmark: _Hlk83132944]Queensland Homicide Victims Support Group 
Queensland Homicide Victims Support Group (QHVSG) delivers services to people who have lost a loved one to homicide and offers a truly unique service. For many living in the aftermath of homicide, healing is often accelerated by speaking with others who have ‘been there too’. Each year, QHVSG supports nearly 150 family members that experience first-hand the devastating effects of homicide.  The Commissioner is the Patron of the QHVSG, and the group works closely with the QPS, liaising with families and providing first responder emotional support. 
· [bookmark: _Hlk83133298]Volunteers in Policing
The aim of the Volunteers in Policing (ViP) program is to recruit and train local community members to carry out a range of voluntary tasks that complement but not compete with the established responsibilities of police officers and other paid staff members. In general, these tasks assist police to deliver a range of services designed to enhance community safety. ViPs are based in local police establishments where they work with police to address customer service, community safety and crime prevention needs in the local area. ViPs also support victims of crime, often attending with police to speak with and provide support to people who have gone through difficult and traumatic experiences. ViPs also assist Police Recruiting with the overall recruiting process. There are approximately 252 ViPs throughout the state.  For more information or to become a ViP, visit the QPS website www.police.qld.gov.au/join/vip/default.htm.
[bookmark: _Hlk110585125][bookmark: _Hlk112153355]Action plans and strategies
The QPS works collaboratively with various government departments, including the Department of Premier and Cabinet, Queensland Treasury, Department of Children, Youth Justice and Multicultural Affairs, Department of Justice and Attorney-General, Queensland Health, non-government and not-for-profit organisations and private sectors, to lead and/or contribute to whole-of-government action plans and strategies, and various other bodies of work.  
The QPS provides regular input into Queensland Government action plans and strategies including, but not limited to: 
· Queensland Youth Justice Strategy (2019-23) and Action Plan (2019-2021) – being updated
· Queensland Youth Justice and Youth Engagement Charter Reporting (2020-21) 
· Culture and Reconciliation and Moving Ahead (CARMA)
· Many Voices – Queensland Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Languages Policy Action Plan 2020-2022
· Local Thriving Communities Action Plan 2020-22
· Disability Services Plan (2020-21) – (being updated) 
· Queensland Government Regulator Performance Framework 
· Sexual Violence Prevention Framework and Action Plan (2021-22) – being updated
· Domestic and Family Violence Prevention Strategy 2016-2026 
The progress updates against the actions plans and strategies can be viewed on www.police.qld.gov.au.  
The QPS is also working with partner agencies to implement the recommendations from Royal Commissions and/or Commissions of Inquiry including: 
· Women’s Safety Justice Taskforce Report 1 – Hear her voice
· Royal Commission into Institutional Responses to Child Sexual Abuse
· Not Now, Not Ever: Putting an end to domestic and family violence in Queensland report. 
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[bookmark: _Hlk83132786][bookmark: _Hlk114488936]Locations
QPS delivers its services from various locations throughout the state including:
	· Police facilities
	341

	· Police watchhouses
	57

	· Police neighbourhood beats, shopfronts and mobile police beats
	64

	· District offices
	15

	· Headquarters and regional offices
	8

	· Communication centres
	14

	· Police academies located in Oxley and Townsville
	2

	· Policelink located in Brisbane (Zillmere)
	1

	· Rapid Action and Patrol Groups (RAPS) located at Gold Coast and Townsville
	2



In addition, each police district is supported by a range of specialist areas which may include the Child Protection and Investigation Unit, Criminal Investigation Branch, Intelligence Unit, Scenes of Crime and Scientific Units, Dog Squad Unit, Forensic Crash Unit, Road Policing Unit, Prosecutions Corp and Water Police Unit.  There are also purpose-built investigation centres to respond to major incidents located at various stations and district offices throughout the state.  

[bookmark: _Hlk51585903]The QPS delivered minor and medium capital works and major capital investment projects.  
In 2021-22, the QPS delivered the following capital projects: 
· Beaudesert replacement police facility
· Biloela replacement police facility
· Pimpama new police facility
· Pormpuraaw replacement police facility and watchhouse
· Nambour replacement police facility. 



[bookmark: _Hlk112151913]Service Delivery Program
In January 2020, the Service Alignment Program (SAP) was established to implement the 22 recommendations resulting from the QPS Strategic Review, initiated by the Commissioner in September 2019.  While SAP transitioned to a business-as-usual model in July 2021, the Service Delivery Program (SDP) is continuing the implementation of the new service delivery model across the Service.  
One of the final actions of the SAP was the realignment of the existing five regions resulting in the creation of two new regions.  The QPS now has seven regions including the North Coast (based on Moreton, Sunshine Coast and Wide Bay-Burnett Districts) and Far North (based on Cairns and Cape York Peninsula areas) Regions as of 1 July 2021.  
The 2019 QPS Strategic Review highlighted the significant increase in demand on the Service and the stretch on resources across large geographical spans could not be sustained. As a result, the Regional Alignment Project was established to examine regional boundaries to identify benefits and opportunities to optimise service delivery to meet the demand of a growing Queensland.  This project considered strategic, structural, and situational challenges and opportunities to deliver policing services across the state, along with local government, disaster management and the Australian Bureau of Statistics Census Data mesh block boundaries.  The creation of these two new regions provided the opportunity to gain longer term efficiencies in terms of capacity, people, performance and community where service delivery is aimed at prevention together, disruption, response and investigation.  
The SDP is intended to drive service delivery reform throughout the state, centred around a purpose-built end-to-end service delivery model.  The primary aim of the SDP is to create a connected, engaged and job ready workforce that maintains and strengthens community confidence by delivering timely and professional responses to calls for service.  
The Service Delivery Redesign Project (SDRP) was established to explore, design and test a new frontline service delivery model in a trial location to confirm the viability and scalability of the model prior to a statewide rollout.  Moreton District was selected as the trial location in early 2020.  The trial concluded in October 2021 and resulted in the creation of a new service delivery model to be rolled out into districts.  
The service delivery model is based on a core foundational structure.  Each police district works with the SDP team to customise the service delivery model to reflect local needs and nuances. The service delivery model was trialled in Moreton District in North Coast Region with key learnings informing future implementation.  This work has led to a statewide rollout with the design phase to commence in Logan District in August 2022.  


[bookmark: _Hlk112152088]QPS response to COVID-19
The QPS continued to provide ongoing and widespread support in 2021-22 as part of Queensland’s response to the COVID-19 public health emergency. The QPS undertook multiple roles focused on educating the community and ensuring compliance with essential public health measures, taking enforcement action as appropriate.  
The prolonged QPS response was coordinated through the dedicated Taskforce Sierra Linnet which operated from the State Police Operations Centre (SPOC) in Brisbane. The Taskforce was initially stood up on 6 March 2020 and ceased operations on 29 April 2022. 
Throughout 2021-22, the QPS continued to provide the following essential functions:
· border pass application processing and approvals 
· domestic and international border controls (including at road borders and airports)
· issuing of quarantine direction notices and investigation of any breaches in relation to these directions
· security overlay at government-nominated quarantine facilities, including at the Queensland Regional Accommodation Centre (QRAC)
· community compliance checks for individuals and businesses regarding the public health and social measures linked to vaccination status and mask-wearing requirements. 
After almost two years of tireless QPS effort on Queensland’s road borders and at domestic airports, including the 60 iterations of the public health directions that restricted entry into Queensland, all domestic border controls were removed on 15 January 2022. 
Between 26 March 2020 and 15 January 2022, approximately 10 million border passes were issued for entry into Queensland.  During this period at Queensland’s road borders, the QPS:  
· intercepted more than 3.7 million vehicles
· over 35,900 vehicles were turned around
· directed more than 20,240 people to quarantine.
For the same period at Queensland’s domestic airports: 
· almost 29,700 flights were met by police
· more than 1.8 million passengers were processed
· over 4,450 passengers were refused entry
· more than 64,480 passengers were directed to quarantine.  
In response to increased vaccination rates and the changing public health environment, restrictions for international travel into Queensland were gradually eased in stages on 22 January 2022 and 28 April 2022, before finally being removed on 30 June 2022. The QPS withdrew from activities at international airports on 28 April 2022. Between 27 March 2020 and this time:
· more than 291,400 passengers were processed
· over 77,840 international passengers were placed into hotel quarantine (excluding flight crew and exempt persons such as seasonal workers and seafarers).
In relation to other activities, throughout the pandemic, the QPS:
· conducted more than 34,450 self-quarantine compliance visitations (6 February 2020 to 22 January 2022)
· conducted almost 15,500 business compliance visits (26 February 2020 to 22 January 2022)
· handed out more than 17,100 masks to members of the community (29 June 2021 to 4 March 2022)
· responded to over 37,300 calls for service related to COVID-19 (1 March 2020 to 29 April 2022). 
The QPS acknowledges the COVID-19 pandemic may continue for the foreseeable future. Following the reduction in the level of QPS involvement required for the whole-of-government response and the subsequent closure of Taskforce Sierra Linnet on 29 April 2022, the management of all COVID-19 related response activities transitioned to business-as-usual functions after this date. 
Financial Summary

Summary of financial performance

The following table summarises the operating result and financial position for QPS 2021-22 and the previous financial year. 
	Statement of comprehensive income
	2021-22
$’000
	2020-21
$’000

	Total income from continuing operations
	2,858,646
	2,551,428

	Total expenses from continuing operations
	2,858,646
	2,653,432

	Total other comprehensive income
	104,660
	(43)

	Total comprehensive income
	104,660
	(102,048)

	Statement of financial position
	2021-22
$’000
	2020-21
$’000

	Total assets
	2,219,654
	1,967,114

	Total liabilities
	139,463
	129,975

	Net assets/equity
	2,080,190
	1,837,139


As a result of the Departmental Arrangements Notice (No. 2) 2021 and the disestablishment of the Public Safety Business Agency (PSBA), PSBA assets and liabilities were transferred to QPS, effective 1 July 2021, net assets $115.666 million.

Income and expenses from continuing operations
QPS is funded to deliver timely, high quality and efficient policing services, in collaboration with community, government and non-government partners, to make Queensland safer. Funding for these services is received principally through parliamentary appropriations. 
QPS aims to deliver safety and secure communities through innovation, collaboration and best practice. The expenses incurred in the delivery of these services are summarised further below.
For 2021-22, QPS received income from continuing operations totalling $2,858.646 million and incurred total expenditure from continuing operations of $2,858.646 million.  This was comprised of:


Income


Expenses

Summary of financial position
QPS was in a positive financial position at the end of the financial year. The total equity (assets less liabilities) of QPS at the end of 2021-22 was $2,080.19 million. This is an increase from 2020-21 $1,837.14 million which includes $104.66 million increase in asset revaluation surplus and $115.666 million net asset and liability transfer of operational assets and PSBA functions as at 1 July 2021, from PSBA to QPS. This was comprised predominantly of:
Assets




Liabilities



Event occurring after balance date
There were no significant events after balance date that could be expected to impact the reported operating result for QPS for the year ended 30 June 2022.



Performance

Key performance measures
The services provided by the QPS focus on reducing and preventing the incidence of crime, public disorder and road trauma to build safe, caring and connected communities. These are delivered through one service area – Police Services.
The objective of the service area is to keep Queensland safe by working with the community and our partners to prevent, disrupt, respond and investigate crime and eliminate road trauma.  A range of services are provided by the QPS to support this, including:
protecting property and personal safety through prevention, disruption, response to and investigation.
maintaining public order and safety, including during major events and disasters
working with partners to reduce demand on the criminal justice system by addressing over-representation among vulnerable groups, including First Nations peoples
Preventing, disrupting, responding and investigating driver behaviours contributing to road trauma: speeding; red light offences; driving while distracted; driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs; driving while fatigued; and not wearing seatbelts. 
The delivery of policing services to Queenslanders is supported by a range of activities designed to promote ethical behaviour, integrity and professional practice. 
The impact of the COVID-19 health pandemic had a significant impact on Queenslanders.  The QPS ongoing response to the COVID-19 health pandemic included the allocation of resources at various locations across the state.  
The following tables provide an overview of the key performance measures for the QPS for 2021-22. Data for 2020-21 is sourced from the Queensland Police Service 2020-21 Annual Report unless otherwise stated in the Notes. 
	[bookmark: _Hlk80694133]Service Area: Police Services

	Performance measures
	Notes
	Strategic Plan
	2021-22 SDS
	RoGS
	2020-21 Actual
	2021-22 Target
/Estimate
	2021-22 Actual

	Percentage of personal safety offences cleared within 30 days: 
	1,4
	P
	P
	
	
	
	

	· Homicide
	
	
	
	
	86%
	70-83%
	73.2%

	· Assault
	
	
	
	
	53%
	54-63%
	58.9%

	· Sexual assault 
	5
	
	
	
	45%
	48-57%
	38.4%

	· Robbery
	
	
	
	
	64%
	57-62%
	62.3%

	· Total personal safety
	
	
	
	
	52%
	54-61%
	55.5%

	Percentage of property security offences cleared within 30 days: 
	2, 4
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· Unlawful entry
	
	
	
	
	22%
	18-21%
	24.0%

	· Other property damage
	
	
	
	
	29%
	25-27%
	36.0%

	· Motor vehicle theft
	
	
	
	
	42%
	36-39%
	43.1%

	Performance measures
	Notes
	Strategic Plan
	2021-22 SDS
	RoGS
	2020-21 Actual
	2021-22 Target
/Estimate
	2021-22 Actual

	· Other theft (excluding unlawful entry)
	
	
	
	
	30%
	26-28%
	30.0%

	· Total property security
	
	
	
	
	30%
	28-30%
	31.4%

	Percentage of good order offences cleared within 30 days
	3, 4
	
	
	
	79%
	80-85%

	78.3%


	Rate of crime victimisation per 1,000 population
	6
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· Total person offences
	7
	
	
	
	7.5
	<6.3
	12.2

	· Total property offences
	
	
	
	
	40.1
	<42.3
	44.4

	[bookmark: _Hlk80969542]Percentage of proceedings where young offenders were offered and accepted a diversion option
	8, 9
	P
	
	
	39.2%
	>40%

	38.8%


	Percentage of proceedings where all offenders were offered and accepted a diversion option
	8, 9
	
	
	
	14.8%
	>10%
	15.4%

	Public perception of safety
	10-13
	P
	P
	P
	
	
	

	· Feelings of safety walking alone in neighbourhood during the night
	
	
	
	
	52.3%
	>50%
	51.2%

	· Feelings of safety travelling alone on public transport during the night
	
	
	
	
	30.8%
	>25%
	30.5%

	Satisfaction of members of the public who had contact with police in the last twelve months
	10, 13
	
	
	
	82.5%
	>85%

	74.5%


	Public satisfaction with police dealing with emergencies and disasters
	10, 13
	
	
	
	83.8%
	>85%

	77.8%


	Public perception of police integrity
	10, 13
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· Police perform their job professionally 
	
	
	
	P
	87.7%
	>85%
	82.6%


	· Police treat people fairly and equally
	
	
	
	
	72.9%
	>75%
	67.5%

	· Police are honest
	
	
	
	
	72.7%
	>75%
	67.5%

	· I do have confidence in the police
	
	
	
	
	83.7%
	>85%
	78.3%


	Rate of complaints against police per 100 sworn staff
	14
	
	
	
	9.5
	<9.8
	10.4



	[bookmark: _Hlk113369350]Performance measures
	Notes
	Strategic Plan
	2021-22 SDS
	RoGS
	2020-21 Actual
	2021-22 Target
/Estimate
	2021-22 Actual

	[bookmark: _Hlk83115281]Rate (per 100,000 people) of road crash fatalities
	15, 16
	
	
	
	5.66
	4.3
	5.57

	Rate (per 100,000 people) of people hospitalised following a road crash
	15, 16
	
	
	
	134.16
	110
	150.09

	Percentage of code 1 and code 2 incidents attended within 12 minutes
	17
	P
	P
	P
	86.0%
	>85%

	85.3%


	Cost of police services per person
	18
	
	
	P
	$490
	$494

	$502


	Agency engagement
	19
	
	
	
	55%
	55%
	51%

	Workforce diversity
	20-22
	
	
	
	
	
	

	· Women in SO, SES and above
	
	
	
	
	16.3%
	16.7%

	18.0%


	· First nations
	
	
	
	
	2.2%
	3.0%
	2.3%

	· People with Disability
	
	
	
	
	2.9%
	5.0%
	1.2%

	· People from non-English speaking background
	
	
	
	
	6.6%
	9.0%
	4.0%

	Discontinued measures 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Proportion of young offenders who have another charged offence within 12 months of initial finalisation for a proven offence
	23, 24
	
	
	
	75%
	TBA
	TBA


Notes
1. The offence categories reported separately are those classified as ‘violent’ crimes and are the most significant personal safety offence categories in terms of their impact on the community. The ‘total personal safety’ offences figure also includes the offence categories of extortion, kidnapping, abduction and deprivation of liberty and other offences against the person. Homicide includes the offence categories of murder, attempted murder and conspiracy to murder.  
2. The offence categories reported separately are considered high volume property security offences. The total property security offences figure also includes arson, fraud and handling stolen goods.  
3. Good order offences include offences relating to public nuisance, obstructing police and other offences against good order. An increase in good order offences generally indicates an increase in policing activity around public spaces and major events, and a range of related proactive policing strategies often focusing on liquor-related enforcement.  
4. Performance is reported against a range rather than a single figure. The target ranges for 2021-22 consider recent results and any known factors that are likely to have an impact in the reporting period. Upper and lower values account for past variation from the recent historical average. 
5. The complexity and protracted nature of sexual assault investigations, coupled with characteristics of the offence reported may impact the proportion of crimes cleared within a set timeframe. Therefore, a definitive explanation for the variance between the 2021–22 Target/Estimate and 2021–22 Actual for sexual assault offences is not feasible. 
6. The measure counts the number of people or addresses classed as a ‘victim’ of a personal or property offence in the preceding 12-month period and represents this as a rate per 1,000 population. The figure is separate and distinct from the rates of offending. It is possible to have a reduction of the number of victims without a reduction in offences. 
7. From 1 July 2021 the QPS implemented a decision to enhance the consistent practice of recording criminal offences associated with domestic and family violence (DFV) investigations across the state within the QPS QPRIME computer system. When responding to and investigating a DFV occurrence, police across the state are now consistently recording all offences identified in the same incident in the QPRIME system. This means that police districts will likely see a statistical increase in a number of DFV related offence categories – for example DFV related assault, strangulation or wilful damage.
8. Offender Diversions refers to the number of offenders (young offenders or adult offenders) who are diverted as a proportion of all offenders proceeded against by police. 
9. The term ‘diverted’ includes diversions of all offenders away from the courts by way of community conference, cautioning by police, intoxication diversion, drug diversion or graffiti diversion.  For adult offenders, only infringement notices (excluding traffic infringement notices) are included in the count of ‘diversions’.  
10. Public satisfaction with police and perceptions of police are sourced from the results of the National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing. The National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing is a general community survey. Respondents to these questions may or may not have had contact with police in the last 12 months.  
11. The figure refers to the percentage of Queensland survey respondents who selected “very safe” or “safe” for each of the following activities:
· walking alone in your neighbourhood during the night
· travelling alone on public transport during the night.
12. The measures for feelings of safety on public transport are based on the entire survey population and includes those participants who have not used public transport. The figure is reported to match the existing Report on Government Services (RoGS) standard.
13. Queensland results mirror that occurring at a national level, indicating national-level factors affecting satisfaction with police. The results are likely a mix of local and national factors affecting attitudes to police generally, though the impact of any one factor (or group of factors) on satisfaction with or perceptions of police cannot be confirmed based on available data. Attitudinal data in particular can be influenced in the short term by significantly adverse or highly publicised events. Point-in-time responses can vary from people's true underlying (or longer term) satisfaction with police and general community perceptions.
14. ‘Complaints’ are defined as statements by members of the public regarding police conduct, including officers on, off or unknown duty, when a person was in police custody or had voluntary or involuntary dealings with the police.  Sworn  staff refers to a police officer employed by the QPS who has sworn the Oath of Office under the Police Service Administration Act 1990, delivering a police or police-related service to an external customer. 
15. The variance between the 2021–22 Actual and 2021–22 Target / Estimate was based on a number of societal influences that can vary throughout the year resulting in changes in numbers of road crashes.
16. [bookmark: _Hlk113369432]The QPS, in partnership with the Department of Transport and Main Roads, continues to implement various road safety initiatives and programs aimed at reducing lives lost and hospitalisations.  The variance between the 2021–22 Actual and 2021–22 Target / Estimate was based on a number of societal influences that can vary throughout the year resulting in changes in numbers of road crashes.  
17. Code 1 and 2 incidents include very urgent matters when danger to human life is imminent and urgent matters involving injury or present threat of injury to person or property. The benchmark of 12 minutes was chosen for comparability with New South Wales Police who use similar methodology, business rules and systems. 
18. Cost of police services per person is the total cost of delivering policing services divided by the estimated population of Queensland. This measure is reported in line with RoGS methodology. 
19. Data for this measure is taken from responses of QPS employees to the whole-of-Government Working for Queensland survey, conducted annually. The measure describes employees’ level of engagement with the organisation in relation to motivation, inspiration and pride. 
20. In early 2016, the Leadership Board of Directors-General introduced and committed to sector-wide diversity targets, working from the principle that our workforce should closely represent the community we serve. 
21. Data is based on substantive placements and includes paid and unpaid employees, excluding staff members engaged on a casual relief basis. Figures are based on self-reported data that is not mandatory which may result in under-reporting on at least some of the diversity categories included. Due to the operational requirements of police, the “People with disability” target is based on non-operational staff members only. 
22. The QPS workforce generally changes at a slower rate compared to other agencies as it has a lower attrition rate, and regarding police officers, generally positions are filled internally only. Consequently, it is challenging to achieve changes to the workforce except over an extended period. 
23. [bookmark: _Hlk114567042]This measure of youth reoffending is currently used by QPS and the Department of Children, Youth Justice and Multicultural Affairs. The measure is discontinued as of 1 July 2022 owing to a change to data definition to include the 10-17 year cohort in calculation of youth reoffending. 
24. Data is not currently available and is expected to the published on the Department of Children, Youth Justice and Multicultural Affairs website in October 2022.


Key
RoGS – Report on Government Services
SDS – Service Delivery Statement
Strategic Plan – Queensland Police Service Strategic Plan 2021-2025



[bookmark: _Hlk114488987]2021-22 Key Highlights

This section reports on the objectives of the QPS Strategic Plan 2021-2025.  To drive delivery of its objectives, the QPS focuses on four main strategies to make Queensland the safest state: 

Our people: Build a connected, engaged and job-ready workforce, with the health, wellbeing and safety of our people a priority

Our community: Together with our community build a safer Queensland

Our relationships: Create a safer community and provide better services through connected and engaged relationships

Our commitment: Embrace new ideas and innovation to strengthen our capability to prevent, disrupt, respond and investigate crime and deliver safe and secure communities. 

The below is a snapshot of the key performance highlights from 2021-22 and is not representative of all work undertaken during the reporting period.  For more information and to keep up to date with QPS news, follow QPS on social media or Mypolice blog (refer to page 1). 

[bookmark: _Hlk83133346]Road Policing and the Fatal Five
Many road crashes involve at least one of the ‘Fatal Five’ high-risk road user behaviours which include speeding, drink and drug driving, not wearing a seat belt, driving while fatigued, and driver distraction and inattention.  The QPS is committed to reducing these numbers by conducting multiple statewide road policing enforcement and education campaigns to influence driver behaviour and target offending on Queensland roads.  
[bookmark: _Hlk81206660]Road Policing and Regional Support Command have, in addition to road enforcement operations, partnered with rider groups and the Department of Transport and Main Roads to better educate riders as to the causes of motorcycle crashes and rider safety in general. 
In 2021-22, the QPS delivered various high visibility road safety operations to target the Fatal Five high-risk road user behaviours and reduce lives lost on the roads which resulted in: 
· more than 113,500 speeding infringement notices issued (excluding camera detected offences)
· approximately 4,700 infringement notices issued for not wearing seat belts
· more than 3,700 infringement notices issued for using mobile phones while driving
· over 1.47 million random breath tests which detected approximately 16,600 drink driving offences
· over 52,100 roadside drug tests which detected approximately 10,200 drug driving offences.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114488999]Mobile Police Beats
In keeping with our commitment to embrace new ideas and innovation to strengthen our capability to prevent, disrupt, respond to and investigate crime and deliver safe and secure communities, the QPS deployed 10 new mobile police beats (MPB) in 2021-22.  The MPBs are available in South Brisbane, Logan, North Brisbane, Ipswich, Gold Coast, Townsville, Moreton, Wide Bay Burnett and Darling Downs Districts as part of a new local policing strategy.  Mobile Police Beats are the way of the future, delivering a highly visibile policing presence when and where they are operationally needed. 
The Mobile Police Beats are equipped with police technology and equipment to provide a suite of services with the added advantage of mobility and flexibility to move around the local area, increasing visibility of the police presence and capability. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114489570]Referral services
The QPS has many strategies to prevent, disrupt, respond to and investigate domestic and family violence (DFV) in Queensland.  In addition, the Queensland Police Referral Service allows officers to connect at-risk and vulnerable persons with over 530 external support providers covering 65 different vulnerabilities including DFV, mental health, homelessness and victim support.  In 2020-21, the QPS referred over 78,000 people to external support providers.  
Protecting victims of domestic and family violence
[bookmark: _Hlk80618143]The QPS is committed to embracing new ideas and innovation to strengthen its capability to prevent, disrupt, respond to and investigate domestic and family violence.  In 2021-22, the QPS Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Command commenced several initiatives including: 
· the development and release of a High Risk, High Harm Dashboard to provide officers with analytics to identify and target high risk, high harm perpetrators. Training in the use of the dashboard has been delivered to all 15 QPS districts to enable officers to identify these high risk, high harm offenders along with engagement with victims, in a safe and appropriate manner to provide support and referral pathways to service providers. 
· [bookmark: _Hlk113001471]partnering with the Department of Justice and Attorney-General to introduce legislative changes to limit the trauma involved in the criminal justice process. The legislative changes will enable trained police officers to use body worn cameras to obtain victim statements from victims of DFV and for these to be used as the evidence-in-chief in court. The Evidence and Other Legislation Amendment Bill passed in parliament in May 2022, with proclamation set for late August 2022.  The QPS have commenced training staff in preparation of a pilot trial, anticipated to commence in late 2022, in two police districts. The training incorporates the application of victim-centric, trauma informed practices and has been developed in consultation with subject matters experts. 
· in collaboration with the Department of Justice and Attorney-General, planning is underway to trial and evaluate a co-responder model involving joint responses between QPS and specialist DFV services. The model aims to improve victim safety by better identifying and responding to patterns of behaviour over time that constitute DFV violence, reduce the misidentification of the person most in need of protection, engage early with victims to connect them with services and hold perpetrators accountable. It also aims to improve service system integration, including a better understanding of agency roles and responsibilities. 
White Ribbon Accreditation
In October 2021, the QPS was formally re-accredited as a White Ribbon Australia Workplace for a further three years. To meet accreditation the QPS met 15 criteria across three accreditation standards of Leadership and Commitment, Prevention of Violence Against Woman, and Responses to Violence Against Women to demonstrate organisational commitment to addressing gender-based violence, abuse and harassment of women in the workplace. The accreditation demonstrates the QPS commitment to enhancing policies, programs and training to improve understanding of DFV and support affected employees. 
Police response to Mental Health Crisis
The QPS continues to support and enhance policing responses to the mental health crisis in the community through the implementation of the Mental Health Intervention Program Review recommendations.  A comprehensive training needs analysis to identify opportunities for the development and strengthening of cross-agency mental health training has commenced. In addition, two Mental Health Co-Responder Evaluations are being undertaken to determine the outcomes, benefits, and efficacy of co-responder models in Queensland. 
To guide the QPS response to the mental health crisis, the State Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Unit has also developed the QPS Mental Health Response Strategy.  The strategy aims to guide the delivery of progressive and dynamic policing practices that reduce harm and enhance the safety of persons impacted by or experiencing mental health crises within the community. 
[bookmark: _Hlk110330559]Youth Justice Unit
In April 2022, the QPS created a Youth Justice Unit within the Crime and Intelligence Command to continue to deliver the QPS-specific work of the Youth Justice Taskforce.  The unit will also implement strategies, policies and training to reduce youth reoffending in Queensland.  
Assistant Commissioner Cheryl Scanlon continues to lead the Youth Justice Taskforce with a focus on multi-agency collaboration and whole-of-government responses and reform to target youth offending in Queensland.  This includes engaging with First Nations leaders, community members, non-government organisations and partner government agencies on a wide range of issues including prevention and disruption strategies to break the cycle of youth reoffending. 
During the reporting period, Assistant Commissioner Scanlon continued to Chair the Senior Officers Reference Group to provide whole-of-government strategic leadership and advice to inform the Government’s response to target recidivist youth offenders.  Assistant Commissioner Scanlon also represents the QPS on the Youth Justice Taskforce Operational Leaders Group with the DCYJMA to deliver reforms to the frontline.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114489830]Multi-agency Case Management Model to reduce youth re-offending
The Youth Justice Unit, in partnership with the DCYJMA, has developed the framework for an ‘Intensive Multi-Agency Case Management’ model to establish an effective and more cohesive multi-agency approach for serious repeat offenders with particular focus on post detention management. Phase two of the Youth Justice Taskforce reform agenda was launched in October 2021 and focuses on the implementation of strategies to reduce youth reoffending including: 
· the establishment of 18 multi agency collaborative panels in 15 police districts
· the implementation of a unique 72-hour release from detention plan to support and monitor serious repeat offenders upon their release from detention centres
· the release of a monthly serious repeat offender index to provide greater vision regarding the most serious repeat young offenders
· a Memorandum of Understanding and Guide to improve communication and information sharing regarding serious repeat offenders across government. 
[bookmark: _Hlk107924045]Youth Justice Five Point Action Plan
The QPS continues to work collaboratively with DCYJMA and other key stakeholders to undertake the activities of the Youth Justice Five Point Plan (announced March 2020).  Each action works to provide a holistic response with intersections across the multiple actions providing an amplified effect.  Actions undertaken in 2021-22 include: 
1. Tougher action on bail. Offenders posing a risk to the community should not get bail.
This initiative provides targeted local case and place-based responses to at-risk youth released on bail through proactive strategies including home bail compliance checks, proactive youth engagement and patrols of known hot spots, as well as referral services.  This action has strengthened policing responses to serious high-risk recidivist youth offenders.  This activity is undertaken in Cairns, Townsville, Mackay, Rockhampton, Moreton, North Brisbane, Ipswich, South Brisbane, Gold Coast and Logan.  In 2021-22, there were over 9,000 police interactions with young people on bail. 
2. [bookmark: _Hlk111711935][bookmark: _Hlk81392571]Police blitz on bail, appealing children’s court decisions where appropriate.  QPS Specialist Bail Prosecutors advocate in the Children’s Court on complicated bail matters, take carriage of bail reviews, provide advice and support for operational police and other prosecutors in respect to the application of new legislation when preparing objections to bail, show cause determinations and electronic monitoring device conditions in addition to providing an ‘on call’ service for out of hours state-wide assistance. In 2021-22, 11 Prosecutors provided service to 13 districts reviewing over 3,440 matters where a young person was arrested. 
3. 24/7 Co-responder Team, a police/youth justice worker partnership targeting high-risk offenders.  The youth co-responder teams work in dedicated police vehicles providing a rapid response capability to young people who come into contact with the criminal justice system or are at risk of doing so.  This initiative proactively engages young people and provides them with culturally appropriate prevention and diversion responses (including support from Legal Advocacy and Bail Support Services), facilitate appropriate custodial arrangements, monitor and support bail compliance, connect young people and families with community supports and interventions to address the causes of offending.  This action is undertaken in Cairns, Townsville, Mackay, Rockhampton, Moreton, North Brisbane, Logan and Gold Coast.  In 2021-22, Youth Co-Responder Teams interacted with young people more than 18,550 times and with parents, carers, education, health and other stakeholders over 22,000 times.  The top seven referral types in 2021-22 were education, sporting/recreation, accommodation/housing, cultural connectedness, employment/job network, youth and family support services and Transition to Success. 
4. Culture-based rehabilitation for indigenous offenders through new On Country initiatives.  
This action is led by DCYJMA in Townsville, Cairns and Mount Isa using cultural knowledge and skills to provide supportive and therapeutic responses, with an aim to support high risk repeat offenders return to work or education.  The courts and QPS can refer high risk Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander offenders aged 10-17 years to the program. 
5. Empowering local communities with $2 million for community-based organisations for local community-based solutions.  Locally established committees allocate funds to deliver prevention initiatives that meet the needs of the community across 12 locations including Cairns, Townsville, Mount Isa, Ipswich, Gold Coast, Toowoomba, Logan, Rockhampton, Caboolture, Mackay, South Brisbane, and North Brisbane.  The funding supplements agency activities and programmes that support community driven responses to high-risk youth as well as addressing complex cultural, social and economic factors that contribute to offending.  In 2021-22, 135 applications for funding were supported that contributed to positive outcomes for the youth and their local communities. 
[bookmark: _Hlk110502478]Youth Justice Strategy
The QPS continues to work collaboratively across the state to implement the Queensland Government Youth Justice Strategy – Working Together Changing the Story 2019-2023 Action Plan. 
The QPS is the lead agency for two ongoing actions in the Action Plan: 
1. Increasing police diversions of young offenders with an emphasis on building more robust processes to divert young people away from the youth justice system in appropriate circumstances.  QPS diversion activities include Restorative Justice referrals, administering cautions, Protected Admissions Scheme, referral to drug and graffiti diversions. In 2021-22, over 12,500 young people were cautioned, more than 1,400 were referred to Restorative Justice Conferencing and over 9,200 were referred for drug and graffiti diversion.  
2. Framing the Future is a dedicated mentoring and support program for graduates of Project Booyah and the Booyah Respect program.  Young people are being supported through the Project Booyah Framing the Future program across nine locations in Queensland.  As at 30 June 2022, there were 226 participants engaged with 62% being re-engaged with education, 33% obtaining employment, 10% obtaining a work experience and 12% a vocation qualification.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114490144]QPS’s eye in the sky
The two POLAIR helicopters, based in Brisbane and Gold Coast, provide tactical aerial support to police operations, improve officer and community safety and situational awareness of major events and critical incidents.  From tracking offenders, to search and rescue, and providing real time situational awareness of major incidents, police helicopters help keep the community safe by providing quality support to frontline police.  During 2021-22, the two POLAIR helicopters:
· were the first police resource on scene for 553 reported incidents
· were responsible for monitoring and recovering more than 338 stolen vehicles, aided by contemporary equipment and technology
· located 55 missing persons, assisted by state-of-the-art night vision and infra-red technology
· located 1,208 offenders in the course of POLAIR assistance provided to frontline officers
· participated in 64 counter-terrorism and covert surveillance operations. 
Keeping our Queensland waterways safe
The QPS helps make Queensland the safest state by patrolling not only on our roads and in the sky, but on our waterways too.  The Queensland Water Police provides specialist support focussing on maritime incidents and operations, including: 
· maritime safety and enforcement activity on our coastal and inland waterways to a distance of 200 nautical miles offshore
· drug and alcohol enforcement activity and intelligence gathering 
· search and rescue with approximately 750 operations undertaken annually
· a dedicated statewide Dive Unit with approximately 150 deployments each year
· providing ongoing on-water response to COVID threats across the state
· intercepting international and interstate vessels arriving in Queensland in collaboration with marine partners
· providing a policing and biosecurity overlay to members of the community in remote locations including Torres Strait, Yarrabah, Palm Island and Mornington Island. 
The Water Police operates from 11 main water police bases across Queensland and has a fleet of 63 vessels to ensure the safety of the marine community.  
The QPS officially commissioned the Queensland Police Vessel (QPV) Sally Urquhart in July 2021.  QPV Sally Urquhart is named in honour of fallen police officer Sally Urquhart who sadly died in a plane crash on 7 May 2005 while travelling to Townsville for policing duties.  Naming the QPV in Sally’s honour was an important way for the Queensland community to continue to honour Sally’s life and ensure her service to the QPS and community was never forgotten.  QPV Sally Urquhart will be utilised in the provision and response to policing incidents across the Gold Coast and Logan, including search and rescue operations.  
[bookmark: _Hlk113007543]New laws to protect police dogs and horses
Police dogs and horses play a vital role in serving to protect the Queensland community.  They work alongside police officers and should be protected from anyone who tries to harm them.  Tough new laws have been imposed to protect police dogs and horses and impose harsher penalties on those who seriously injure our faithful servants.  
In December 2021, Parliament passed amendments to the Police Service Administration Act 1990.  The amendments include a new indictable offence targeting people who seriously injure or kill a police dog or horse with a maximum penalty of up to five years imprisonment.  In addition, new meritorious service award for police dogs will be established to acknowledge the important community safety work they do. 
Queensland Police Dogs honoured at monument launch
In July 2021, the QPS launched the Police Dog Service Monument at the Brisbane Dog Squad Offices and Kennels in Oxley.  The monument was designed by students at Stanthorpe State High School and consists of more than 300 engraved stones, which were funded by members of the community, local businesses and QPS officers, and honours all police dogs that have served the Queensland community since 1972, recognising their loyalty and commitment to keeping Queensland safe.  
More than 437 police dogs have served in the QPS since the Dog Squad was established 50 years ago.  Police dogs are critical members of the Service, supporting our frontline police from tracking offenders on foot to locating hidden drugs.  There are 15 Dog Squads and 86 dog teams across the state.  
The bond between a dog and handler is incredible and this monument had been a great opportunity to bring together our members and the community to share stories and acknowledge their contribution. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114490210]First Nations and Multicultural Affairs Unit
The First Nations and Multicultural Affairs Unit (FNMAU) was established in November 2020 to develop culturally responsive strategies to strengthen organisational cultural capability and the Service’s relationship with Queensland’s First Nations and diverse cultural communities.  
The FNMAU directly oversees First Nations and Multicultural engagements and is linked to district and regional functions such as Police Liaison Officers (PLO), Torres Strait Island Police Liaison Officers (TSIPLO) and Cross-Cultural Liaison Officers (CCLO).  In 2021-22, the FNMAU continued to progress significant bodies of work to build a culturally inclusive, responsive and capable workforce, including: 
· establishing the CCLO network to enhance support and advocacy for CCLOs, PLOs and TSIPLOs
· reviewing and promoting the engagement of translation and interpreter services statewide to increase accessibility of policing services and trust in the community
· coordinating mentoring programs for the Multicultural Recruit Program
· developing and facilitating culturally appropriate and sensitive separations interview processes for Culturally and Linguistically Diverse and First Nations members separating from the QPS
· [bookmark: _Hlk51571359]building partnerships with external non-government agencies to promote and advertise the Indigenous Recruit Preparation Program and MultiCultural Recruit Program 
· strengthening partnerships with the Department of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Policy (DATSIP), Multicultural Affairs, Youth Justice, Queensland Health, Queensland Correctional Services and other partner agencies to respond to overrepresentation in the criminal justice system of victims or offenders, including vulnerable persons, young people and victims of domestic and family violence.  
Amber Alert
The QPS values the information and assistance received from members of the public and strives to generate better outcomes for police and the people of Queensland.  Amber Alerts are issued by police when they need urgent public assistance from the Queensland community to help locate abducted or high-risk missing children who are at imminent risk of death or serious harm. The alerts are broadcast to the public through secondary alerting partners including the media, commercial billboard companies, community groups and other government agency shared messaging, public transport messaging systems, a national emergency alerting company and on various social media platforms. The Amber Alert branding is now widely recognised by the community as an urgent ‘call to action’.  
In 2021-22, five Amber Alerts were issued with all children safely located.  Evidence shows the Amber Alerts played a significant role in the safe recovery of these children. 
[bookmark: _Hlk112139873]Authorisations made relating to a terrorist act or threat
In terms of the Police Service Administration Act 1990 section 5.17(15) Authorisation of non-state police officers, no authorisations were made relating to a terrorist act or threat during 2021-22.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114489853]Protecting our children
The Argos Unit is principally responsible for the investigation of organised child exploitation, including computer-facilitated offences to keep children safe and free from harm.  Investigators proactively and reactively target a broad range of websites and mobile applications used by child sex offenders to prey on children. Argos staff also identify and implement new strategies to combat computer-facilitated crimes against children.  
During the reporting period, Argos investigators: 
· contributed to the identification of 417 children in circumstances of sexual harm nationally and internationally
· arrested 29 child sex offenders on 145 criminal charges
· referred 279 cases to law enforcement agencies nationally and internationally.  
The QPS has, and will continue to, foster collaborative partnerships with national and international police jurisdictions to develop innovative and efficient approaches to preventing, disrupting, responding to, and investigating crime.  The QPS has co-located Argos members, including covert online investigators, the victim identification team and an intelligence analyst at the Australian Centre to Counter Child Exploitation to build national capability and better align QPS and Australian Federal Police resources and functions, enhancing community safety.  The Argos Unit is also a key member and contributor to international law enforcement forums and working groups including the Interpol Specialist Group on Crimes Against Children and the Europol European Multidisciplinary Platform Against Criminal Threats meetings on Global Covert Internet Investigations. 


Combatting sexual violence
[bookmark: _Hlk112664215][bookmark: _Hlk111711954]In October 2021, the QPS launched its Sexual Violence Response Strategy 2021-2023 (the Strategy) to enhance the QPS’s capacity to prevent, disrupt, respond to, and investigate sexual violence and to hold perpetrators to account.  Through the Strategy’s 25 actions, the QPS will empower the community and reduce harm through proactive engagement, education and by providing enhanced access to victim support services.  The QPS has also commenced the statewide rollout of Sexual Violence Liaison Officers and also expanding victim-survivor reporting options. The QPS completed the statewide rollout of the Sexual Violence Liaison Officer roles in 2021-22.  The Officers in Charge of Criminal Investigation Branches and Child Protection and Investigation Units (93 in total) are designated Sexual Violence Liaison Officers.  
Adult victims of sexual violence who do not wish to make a formal complaint to police can use the QPS online alternative reporting option (ARO) to provide police with crucial intelligence about sexual crimes and other predatory sexual behaviours.  Introduced in 2010, the ARO was one of the first reporting programs of its kind in the world, empowering sexual violence survivors to anonymously report their lived experiences which is used to solve other reported crimes and protect further victims from harm.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114491152]QPS recognised at Mumbrella CommsCon Award
The QPS Media and Public Affairs Team was awarded the ‘Best In-house Public Relations Team’ at the Mumbrella CommsCon Awards – one of the communications industry’s biggest events, celebrating and recognising top talent across Australia and New Zealand.  
This award recognises the hard work and dedication by the Media and Public Affairs Team which work around the clock with officers across the state to communicate critical information, assist with complex investigations, build platforms to engage with audiences and develop campaigns that contribute towards creating a safer Queensland. 
[bookmark: _Hlk108424789][bookmark: _Hlk114489870]QPS and Tinder match up to develop safety campaign
On 18 November 2021, the QPS launched a joint safety campaign with Tinder, an online dating platform.  The Crime and Intelligence Command and Media and Public Affairs Team collaborated to develop a safety campaign aimed at preventing internet facilitated sexual assaults and raising awareness of personal safety, offender behaviour, sexual violence reporting and support options. 
The campaign also publicised to potential offenders that QPS will protect the safety within the online environment and unwanted or criminal behaviour will not be tolerated.  The campaign was highly successful and reached three million people.  
Taskforce to target criminal street gangs
In February 2022, the QPS established Taskforce Uniform Knot to address unlawful activity by criminal street gangs including serious personal violence offences, property and weapons offences, serious fraud offences and public disturbances.  The Taskforce is comprised of officers from Organised Crime Gangs Group, Southern and South Eastern Police Regions and the QPS First Nations and Multicultural Affairs Group.  Taskforce Uniform Knot brings together key capabilities to tackle criminal street gangs in South East Queensland with a focus on prevention and disruption and diverting young people away from the criminal justice system.  
Since its establishment to 30 June 2022, the Taskforce has: 
· served 37 Consorting Notices with five further notices to be served
· attended 105 family residences of known members to offer support and intervention to dissuade members from offending behaviours
· charged 30 offenders with 86 offences. 
The Crime and Intelligence Command also developed the Risk Assessment of Violence in Network to support the Taskforce in identifying, triaging and prioritising the targeting of known criminal street gang members.  This will assist with the effective allocation of resources to disrupt criminal street gang offending. 

[bookmark: _Hlk110935865]QPS celebrates milestone for Police Communication civilian operators
In December 2021, the QPS celebrated 25 years of civilian police communication operators.  Prior to 1996, the police communication operators were sworn police officers answering the phones and despatching police.  In 1996, a decision was made to civilianise the roles resulting in two training courses and the commencement of civilian radio and call operators.  The first group of civilian operators was a small cohort of just 40 employees which has since grown to over 270 operators and accounts for over half of the communications group.  
Police communication operators play a critical role in ensuring triple zero calls are answered and responded to in a timely manner and are often the first point of contact in emergency situations.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114818946]What’s happening in the regions
The QPS’s seven police regions, comprising 15 districts and 341 police stations, deliver first class frontline policing services to the communities of Queensland.  Each region operates in partnership with the community to ensure the policing response is agile, adaptable and adequately targets the issues and crime trends affecting local communities.  
The regional police officers play a pivotal role and are often the first response officers to crimes and calls for services.  The regions include Brisbane, South Eastern, Southern, Northern, Far Northern, North Coast and Central.  Refer to page 17 for a map of the police regions.  
[bookmark: _Hlk115080639]In addition to the services provided through Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Command (refer to page 31 for more information), the regions worked with partners and the community to enhance their services to better manage domestic and family violence calls for service.  This includes: 
· creation of a new Domestic Violence and Vulnerable Persons facility in April 2022 in Toowoomba, providing a safe place for persons to attend and liaise with police officers away from the main police station.  The facility includes a Vulnerable Persons Liaison Officer, Domestic and Family Violence Coordinator, Domestic and Family Violence Officer and Mental Health Liaison Officer
· Moreton District in North Coast Region establishing a dedicated Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Unit to increase the regions capacity to respond to, and support victims of domestic violence
· Watchhouse Respondent Assistance Program in Ipswich District to identify early intervention strategies and suitable referral pathways with respondents in custody to influence positive behaviour changes 
· North Brisbane District in Brisbane Region established the Serious Violence Investigation Team in December 2021 to investigate domestic and family violence criminal offences 
· Logan District in South Eastern Region partnering with Centre for Women, also based in Logan, to operate a domestic violence co-responder model to provide comprehensive risk assessment and safety planning and streamlining referral services. 
In addition to QPS launching the Sexual Violence Strategy 2021-2023, Northern Region established a multi-agency Sexual Assault Response Team providing a holistic, sensitive and timely response to victims of sexual violence.  The specialist team is comprised of workers from Sexual Assault Support Service, QPS investigators from Townsville Criminal Investigation Branch, Townsville University Hospital and Office of the Director of Public Prosecutions.  
The Fortitude Valley Bike Squad in Brisbane Region received a new fleet of bicycles to provide greater agility, mobility and policing presence in the inner-city area.  The capability of the bicycles allows access to areas not generally available to general duties such as bikeways, bushlands and off-road terrains and facilitates a rapid response to incidents and calls for assistance within the Safe Night Precinct on Friday and Saturday nights when vehicular and pedestrian traffic pose challenges.  
All regions have dedicated Road Policing Units that work to keep Queenslanders safe on our roads and curb negative road user behaviour including the Fatal Five (refer page 30 for more information) which include: 
· Moreton District in North Coast Region established the Road Safety Focus Group to target hooning through coordinated policing operations and targeted patrols resulting in impounding/immobilising offending vehicles.  The group works closely with the Moreton Bay Regional Council to locate CCTV and number plate recognition cameras to gather evidence and deter offending
· Ipswich District Road Safety Committee collaborated with Neighbourhood Watch Australia to launch a road safety cinema advertisement named ‘There’s nothing more we can do’ at the Ipswich and Tivoli Drive cinemas during September and October 2021.  The initiative focussed on the Fatal Five and that road safety is everyone’s responsibility
Far Northern Region continues to work closely with First Nations Communities through partner projects.  Yarrie Yarns took out first place in the 2022 Premiers Reconciliation Award, in collaboration with the Yarrabah Shire Council and Wugu Nyambil Employment Services.  Yarrie Yarns is a social media project aspiring towards social change for the Yarrabah community. It shares First Nations stories, otherwise known as yarns, to inspire, motivate, educate, empower and promote reconciliation The project continually highlights the achievements of the Yarrabah community and its people.  
Capricornia District in Central Region and QPS Fleet Assets donated two decommissioned Isuzu dual cab four-wheel drive utilities to the Woorabinda Aboriginal Shire Council Ranger Program.  The council is extending its current Ranger Program to include the PCYC initiative ‘Redbank’ Junior Ranger Program to provide opportunities for local young people to gain qualifications and employment pathways, learn Indigenous language and culture, care for their land, and divert them from anti-social behaviour.  The vehicle donation will support the Ranger programs to reach their full potential, provide participants and the community with opportunities to engage with their culture, land and historical sites by undertaking special projects to care for the environment and develop appealing recreational areas in the community.  
The newly established Youth Justice Unit and existing Youth Justice Taskforce work to target youth crime and reoffending in Queensland (refer page 32 for more information).  The regions have also implemented strategies and models to target local problems to address youth offending in their local areas, which include: 
· Mackay District in Central Region established the Youth Justice Co-responder Team, comprising of police officers and Police Liaison Officers working with identified at risk youths and their families to offer additional support, and also initiate case management and stakeholder meetings with partner agencies for emerging youth at risk of offending
· the North Brisbane Youth Co-Responder Team in Brisbane Region completing its first full year of 
24-hour, seven days a week operation involving dedicated police officers and social workers from DCYJMA.  The team continues to actively engage with the Youth Justice Taskforce and Youth Justice Unit to address youth offending and promote positive behaviours
· North Brisbane District, partnering with the Jack Beasley Foundation, a non-profit organisation based on the Gold Coast, to present the ‘One Moment’ violence education program in secondary schools.  The One Moment program aims to educate young people on situational awareness to reduce victimisation, reduce knife-related crime, raise awareness of the ‘I live my life without a knife’ and ‘Once punch can kill’ campaigns. 
· Southern Region in Darling Downs District established significant cross border partnerships and arrangements in response to an increase in cross border offending by juveniles from New South Wales.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114489881]Cracking down on Outlaw Motorcycle Gangs
[bookmark: _Hlk75943152]The Organised Crime Gangs Group (OCGG) works in partnership with police districts and various government departments to target crime linked to organised crime gangs (OCG) including Outlaw Motorcycle Gangs (OMCG) to protect the community of Queensland through prevention, disruption, response to, and investigation of OCGs.  
During 2021-22, the OCGG worked in partnership with the National Anti-Gang Squad Strike Team, Australian Federal Police and Australian Taxation Office to prevent, disrupt, respond to and investigate cross-jurisdictional gang related crime which resulted in: 
· 285 OMCG participants arrested on 1,483 charges
· 213 official consorting notices issued, deterring recognised offenders from establishing, maintaining and expanding criminal networks
· 68 persons charged with wearing gang related prohibited items
· from March 2015 until 30 June 2022 in partnership with the Crime and Corruption Commission, 67 restraining orders have been obtained over property to the value of $20.614 million, in addition to various ATO tax assessments being levied from operations identifying unexplained income. 
The QPS is committed to reducing OMCG recruitment, membership and community harm.  The OMCG Exit program, delivered and managed through community organisations and alongside government partners, provides for adult ex-gang members to access tailored support services including drug and alcohol, employment and training, mentoring, family relationships and mental health services.  Since its inception to 30 June 2022, 31 former OMCG members have joined the program which has changed many individual lives and benefited the community through reduced crime.  



Governance

Executive Management profiles

The QPS Board of Management is comprised of the following members (as at 30 June 2022): 

	Katarina Carroll APM
Commissioner
The Commissioner is responsible for the efficient and proper administration, management and functioning of the QPS.  
The Commissioner provides the business direction and represents the organisation at local, community, state, national and international forums as well as ceremonial functions.  
The Commissioner is a Chairperson, Council Member and Board Member on numerous national boards, committees and professional organisations.  She also performs the role of Patron and Ambassador for a number of police and community groups. 
Significantly, the Commissioner is a representative on the Australian Criminal Intelligence Commission, Australia New Zealand Policing Advisory Agency and Australian Institute of Police Management Boards. 

	Tracy Linford APM
Deputy Commissioner, Crime, Counter-Terrorism and Specialist Operations
The Deputy Commissioner, Crime, Counter-Terrorism and Specialist Operations is responsible for the provision of specialist police services including Crime and Intelligence Command, Security and Counter-Terrorism Command, Ethical Standards Command, Domestic Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Command and the Crime and Corruption Commission (Police Group).
Nationally, the Deputy Commissioner is the QPS representative on the Australia-New Zealand Counter-Terrorism Committee (ANZCTC) and Chairs the Public Information Sub-Committee of ANZCTC.  She is also a member of the Australian Centre to Counter Child Exploitation (ACCCE), Transnational, Serious and Organised Crime Committee (TSOC) and National Criminal Intelligence System Steering Committee.
Deputy Commissioner Linford is a member of, and represents the QPS at Domestic and Family Violence Prevention Council and Women’s Safety and Justice Taskforce.  Deputy Commissioner Linford also represents the QPS on several intergovernmental and internal committees. 

	Steve Gollschewski APM
Deputy Commissioner, Southern Queensland
The Deputy Commissioner, Southern Queensland is responsible for supporting service delivery throughout the Southern Queensland portfolio across the Brisbane, North Coast, South Eastern and Southern police regions, as well as People Capability Command and Communications, Culture and Engagement Division.  The Deputy Commissioner provides leadership to the Assistant Commissioners and Executive Director of the portfolio to facilitate the effective management of their areas of responsibility including promotion and maintenance of an ethical and professional organisational climate.  
Deputy Commissioner Gollschewski is the State Disaster Coordinator for Queensland responsible for coordinating overall Government response to ongoing weather related emergencies.  He is presently leading the QPS reform through the Service Delivery Program and Service Delivery Redesign Project which are delivering improved organisational and operational business models across the agency that will improve community safety and organisational effectiveness. The Deputy Commissioner performs key governance roles within the QPS including the QPS Board of Management, Demand and Capability Committee and Executive Leadership Team and is the QPS champion for Inclusion and Diversity.  

	Paul Taylor APM
Deputy Commissioner, Regional Queensland
Deputy Commissioner Paul Taylor was appointed to the role of Deputy Commissioner, Regional Queensland (Townsville) in early 2020, following QPS transition to a four Deputy Commissioner model. The Deputy Commissioner Regional Queensland portfolio oversees operations associated with the Road Policing and Regional Support Command, Operations Support Command, Far Northern Region, Northern Region and Central Region, representing a total workforce of more than 5,000 employees.  
The Regional Queensland portfolio encompasses a broad cross section of policing environments including rural and remote communities, industry and mining, agriculture and tourism. The portfolio also includes the delivery of policing services attributed to custody, policelink, communications and road policing. 
With more than 40 years policing experience in Queensland, Deputy Commissioner Paul Taylor has made significant contributions to regional stewardship and as a member of the Executive Leadership Team (ELT). Deputy Commissioner Taylor is a graduate of LinCT and has significant national experience in developing counter terrorism capability. His command experience includes service as Deputy Commander for the G20 Brisbane and Commander for both the G20 Finance Minister’s Meeting and the Pacific Islands Forum. For more than 6 years, Deputy Commissioner Taylor has been committed to the establishment of international partnerships involving the Solomon Islands and Papua New Guinea, resulting in being awarded the prestigious Queen’s Diamond Jubilee by the Commissioner, Royal Papua New Guinea Constabulary.  He has also been the recipient of the Australian Police Medal in 2001.  

	Doug Smith APM
Deputy Commissioner, Strategy and Corporate Services
The Deputy Commissioner, Strategy and Corporate Services is responsible for continuous improvement and review, organisational efficiencies and better service provision to the Queensland community.  The Strategy and Corporate Services portfolio has direct responsibility for Policy and Performance Division, Organisational Capability Command, Finance Division, Frontline and Digital Division, Human Resources Division, Safety, Wellbeing and Central Panels Division and Internal Audit.  
The Deputy Commissioner performs key governance roles on Boards and Committees including QPS Board of Management, QPS Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, Executive Leadership Team, and the Demand and Capability Committee.  The Deputy Commissioner also chairs the Our People Matter Strategy Steering Committee, State Honours and Awards Committee and is the QPS representative on the National Police Memorial Coordination Committee.  Deputy Commissioner Smith also represents the QPS on several state and national intergovernmental committees.  

	[bookmark: _Hlk114491931]Jenny Walker
External Member
Jenny’s working life of more than 45 years includes experience in public, private and not-for-profit organisations. Her public sector experience includes Commonwealth, State and Local Government agencies where she had 25 years’ experience in line management and project management roles. While a salaried public sector employee, Jenny also served in the Army Reserve for 16 years in the Intelligence Corps. In her not-for-profit executive career, Jenny was the CEO of Legacy Australia Inc. 
Since 1996 she has worked mainly as a management consultant helping public and private organisations in strategic and operational planning, performance review and change management, organisational reviews, corporate performance improvement, business planning, marketing, human resource strategy and management, and team development. These days her specialty is board and governance advisory.
Jenny has served on several public sector and not for profit boards and committees and is currently the Chair of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and member of the Board of Management for the Queensland Police Service. She is an Independent Director of Australian War Widows (Qld), Chair of the Service Personnel Anglican Help Society operating St George’s Defence Holiday Suites and is also a Services Member on the Veterans’ Review Board.
She is a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and has tertiary qualifications in Business (Marketing, Human Resources and Government), Market Research and a background in land and engineering survey drafting and cartography. 

	Sandra Slater
External member
As Chief Information Officer for the Department of Transport and Main Roads (TMR), Sandra leads a team of more than 400 staff and contractors. She is responsible for delivering a significant Information and Communication Technology (ICT) program to improve customer experience and deliver better digital business outcomes for the department. 
Sandra has proudly dedicated her 30-year career to TMR, working predominantly in ICT roles. She has led the development of ICT strategies and solutions and led teams to deliver many large-scale business and ICT change projects. Sandra is an experienced ICT executive across all elements of ICT planning, delivery, operations and governance, maintaining strong engagements with customers, stakeholders, vendors and industry. 
Sandra started her career as an engineer and is a proud champion of gender diversity in technical professions and regularly lends her time to mentoring programs and creating opportunities for women in the workplace. In 2018, Sandra was the recipient of Women in Technology’s 2018 ICT Outstanding Achievement Award and in 2019 was admitted as a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.  

	Glenn Poole
External Member
Glenn is a professional and successful senior executive and Board member, with over thirty years’ experience in strategic leadership, governance and management across both the public and not-for-profit sectors. 
With experience on the boards of several commercially focussed organisations and a network of key business executives, Glenn is able to make a strategic contribution to entities in many industry sectors. 
Apart from the extensive experience through the Board appointments detailed in this profile, he was the Chief Executive Officer of the Queensland Audit Office (QAO) and Queensland’s Auditor-General from 2004 to 2011. QAO had an annual budget of $45m and 250 professional and support staff and was responsible for the external audits of all entities within the Queensland public sector. Glenn was a senior executive in the Queensland Treasury Department for over fifteen years. 
Glenn is currently providing strategic advice in the public and not-for-profit sectors through his roles on Audit Committees and as an Executive in Residence at the Australian Centre for Philanthropy and Non-profit Studies at the Queensland University of Technology (QUT) Business School. 
He also provided strategic advice in the review of the Western Australian Audit Office undertaken in 2016 for the Joint Standing Committee on Audit of the Parliament of Western Australia. 
Glenn holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from James Cook University, a Graduate Diploma in Business Administration from QUT and the following memberships/affiliations: 
· Fellow, Australian Institute of Company Directors
· Fellow, CPA Australia
· Fellow, Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Glenn received the award of Doctor of the University from QUT in 2011. 

	[bookmark: _Hlk114491940]Geoff Waite
External Member
Geoff joined Queensland Treasury in 1984 and enjoyed a long career as a senior executive in Treasury, retiring in 2021 from his role as Head of Corporate. During that time, he worked in State Budget roles, as Director of Finance, Assistant Under Treasurer and Head of the Office of Government Owned Corporations. In the middle of this Treasury experience, he left for a number of years and worked in his own business providing management consulting services. 
Geoff has a keen interest in risk management and in encouraging sound organisational and financial management. He has a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Queensland, a Bachelor of Business from QUT, is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management and a Graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 





[bookmark: _Hlk114491958]Boards and committees
[image: ]The QPS Governance Framework (as at 30 June 2022) is as follows: 



	QPS Board of Management (BoM)

	The purpose of the BoM is to endorse strategy, tone, and risk appetite for the Service. 
The role of the BoM is to support and provide expert advice and endorsement to the Commissioner in making key decisions that deliver strategic or Service-wide impact. In doing so, the BoM advises on and oversees performance against strategic and organisational priorities.
The BoM meetings are chaired by the QPS Commissioner. 
The BoM meets every second month or as determined by the Chair. In 2021-22, the BoM met on five occasions and considered 24 matters out-of-session. 
The independent external members collectively received $9,030 in remuneration in 2021-22. 

	BoM members
· Commissioner Katarina Carroll (Chair)
· Deputy Commissioner Doug Smith, Strategy and Corporate Services 
· Deputy Commissioner Paul Taylor, Regional Queensland
· Deputy Commissioner Tracy Linford, Crime, Counter Terrorism and Specialist Operations
· Deputy Commissioner Stephan Gollschewski, Southern Queensland
· External Member – Jenny Walker
· External Member – Sandra Slater

	Achievements
During 2021-22, the BoM overviewed and discussed strategic matters relating to financial reporting, human resources reporting, information, communication & technology reporting, performance reporting and risk reporting.  The BoM considered a number of significant matters including:
· QPS Strategic Plan 2022-2026 and Operational Plan 2022-2023
· Forward Capital Works Program 2022-23, Strategic Asset Management Plan
· Budget Strategy including budget development assumptions, parameters and plan
· ICT Investment Program 2021-22
· Strategic workforce plan, recruitment campaign
· QPS Domestic and Family Violence Strategy 2021-23 and domestic and family violence matters
· Service Delivery Program
· QPS’s response to COVID-19
· QPS Suicide Management Framework
· Natural Hazards and Disaster Resilience Research Institute Program, disaster management preparedness
· Working for Queensland Survey
· Strategic Governance Manual including Charters
· Crime Prevention
· Performance Reporting
· Wellbeing Strategy, health safety and wellbeing matters
· Internal Audit Charter and Plans, Inspections Teams Internal Audit Function Charter and Plan
· Risk Appetite Statement, and audit, risk and compliance
· Media relations and external communications. 

	QPS Demand and Capability Committee (DCC)

	The Demand and Capability Committee’s purpose is to resolve resourcing against fiscal sustainability. The role of the DCC is to: 
· control the organisational prioritisation of resources in a fiscally sustainable manner
· direct and endorse strategies, plans, assessments and reviews to address resource capability planning and delivery and monitor performance to ensure benefits realisation
· lead and ensure continual application of the committee’s responsibilities, including by requiring appropriate reporting
· identify and resolve any relevant emerging issues and trends relevant to its role. 
The committee meets monthly or as determined by the Chair.  
The committee was established in September 2021 and held its inaugural meeting on 6 September 2021.  The DCC met on seven occasions and considered five matters out-of-session in 2021-22.  

	Committee members
· Deputy Commissioner Doug Smith, Strategy and Corporate Services (Chair)
· Deputy Commissioner Paul Taylor, Regional Queensland
· Deputy Commissioner Tracy Linford, Crime, Counter Terrorism and Specialist Operations
· Deputy Commissioner Stephan Gollschewski, Southern Queensland

	Achievements
In 2021-22, the DCC overviewed matters relating to finance performance, human resources, ICT, assets, procurement and projects.  The DCC considered significant matters including: 
· machinery of government transfers
· organisational structure regarding aviation capability
· flexible work arrangements
· police growth allocations and integrated workforce strategy
· approved strength growth plan
· performance reporting
· Client Management System
· capability framework
· capital works program
· leave management
· QPS Research Committee
· crime statistics
· funding requests for initiatives including QPS Self Refer Program
· safety and wellbeing data
· ICT Strategy
· Automatic Number Plate Recognition capability
· 2022-23 Budget Strategy 
· financial sustainability
· subcommittee charters and reporting for Workforce Allocation Subcommittee, Service Delivery Subcommittee and ICT Subcommittee

	QPS Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC)

	The purpose of the ARCC is to scrutinise, challenge and oversee the Commissioners legislated management responsibilities.  
This includes management responsibilities imposed on the Commissioner under the Police Service Administration Act 1990, the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019. 
The role of the ARCC is independent oversight for, and assurance to, the Commissioner and BoM relevant to: 
(i) risk management, performance, policy settings and framework
(ii) internal control and compliance environment
(iii) financial performance, planning, compliance and integrity
(iv) the internal and external audit functions. 
The committee meets quarterly or as determined by the Chair. During 2021-22, the committee met on four occasions.  The three independent external members collectively received $13,759 in remuneration. 

	Committee members
· External Member – Jenny Walker (Chair)
· External Member – Glenn Poole
· External Member – Geoff Waite
· Deputy Commissioner Doug Smith, Strategy and Corporate Services
· A/Assistant Commissioner, Matthew Vanderbyl Organisational Capability Command (note; this position was also significantly filled by Assistant Commissioner Cameron Harsley during the financial year)
· Assistant Commissioner Cheryl Scanlon, Ethical Standards Command (note; this position was also significantly filled by A/Assistant Commissioner Virginia Nelson during the financial year)

	Achievements
During 2021-22, the ARCC provided strategic advice and support to the QPS BoM by considering matters of risk management, internal control and compliance, financial compliance, and auditing and reporting. The ARCC considered the significant matters including: 
· ARCC Charter and ARCC Workplan
· QPS Strategic Risk Register and Risk Appetite Statement
· cyber security reports
· health safety and injury management report
· strategic risks and opportunities for the 2022-23 Strategic Plan
· Compliance and Inspections Program findings and ESC Annual Inspections Plan
· fraud and corruption reporting, plan and policy, fraud and losses reporting
· Annual Financial Statements, financial accounting and compliance and Chief Financial Officer Statement of Assurance
· Annual Internal Audit Plan 2022-23, Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2023-26 and Internal Audit Charter
· open internal audit recommendations
· security themed review – declarable associations
· QAO Reports

	QPS Executive Leadership Team (ELT)

	The Commissioner has established the ELT to be a decision-making body, as part of the strategic level governance framework.  
The purpose of the ELT is to influence and operationalise strategy and to drive performance. 
The role of the ELT is to: 
· influence strategic and operational planning development
· oversee the development of strategies and frameworks that support the Service which are not subject to another strategic governance committee
· oversee and guide Service-wide activities to improve policing operations, responses and capabilities
· operationalise strategies with a coordinated approach and steer the organisation towards achievement of strategic goals and objectives
· identify and address strategic operational issues and risks collectively
· oversee and guide organisational change management for matters of strategic importance
· drive performance with a focus of benefits realisation.  
The ELT meets via video conference weekly and in person on a monthly basis, or as determined by the Commissioner.  
During 2021-22, the ELT met on 11 occasions (in-person) including meetings at the Oxley Academy, Wacol Complex and Hervey Bay.  

	ELT members
The following were ELT members as at 30 June 2022, noting there were periods of time during the financial period that these positions were filled by another member:  
· Commissioner Katarina Carroll (Chair)  
· Deputy Commissioner Doug Smith, Strategy and Corporate Services 
· Deputy Commissioner Paul Taylor, Regional Queensland
· Deputy Commissioner Tracy Linford, Crime, Counter Terrorism and Specialist Operations
· Deputy Commissioner Stephan Gollschewski, Southern Queensland
· Assistant Commissioner Maurice Carless, State Discipline
· Assistant Commissioner Shane Chelepy, Operations Support Command
· Assistant Commissioner Brian Codd, Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Command
· Assistant Commissioner Brian Connors, North Coast Region
· Assistant Commissioner Kevin Guteridge, Central Region
· Assistant Commissioner Cameron Harsley, Brisbane Region
· Assistant Commissioner Kath Innes, Crime and Intelligence Command
· Assistant Commissioner Ben Marcus, Road Policing and Regional Support Command
· Assistant Commissioner Debbie Platz, Security and Counter Terrorism Command
· Assistant Commissioner Charysse Pond, Southern Region
· Assistant Commissioner Cheryl Scanlon, Ethical Standards Command
· Assistant Commissioner Brett Schafferius, Far Northern Region
· Assistant Commissioner Brian Swan, South Eastern Region
· Assistant Commissioner Mark Wheeler, Northern Region
· Assistant Commissioner Chris Jory, Commission of Inquiry into QPS responses to domestic and family violence
· Executive Director Cameron Allen, Frontline and Digital Division
· Executive Director Louise Barrett, Safety, Wellbeing and Central Panels Division
· Executive Director Wayne Brummer, Finance Services Division
· Executive Director Paul Friedman, Policy and Performance Division
· Executive Director Carolyn Harrison, Legal Division
· Chief Superintendent Roger Lowe, Crime and Corruption Commission:
· A/Assistant Commissioner Matthew Vanderbyl, Organisational Capability Command
· A/Assistant Commissioner Mark Kelly, People Capability Command
· A/Executive Director Debbie Patterson, Human Resources Division
· A/Executive Director Kerry Johnson, Communications, Culture and Engagement Division
Standing Attendees
· A/Superintendent Alisa LaPila, Chief of Staff, Commissioners Office
· Director Simon Kelly, Media and Public Affairs, Communications, Culture and Engagement 
· Senior officers on a rotational basis as determined by the Commissioner

	Achievements
During 2021-22, the ELT considered a number of significant matters, including: 
· Cybercrime Strategy 2021-22
· youth justice
· Women’s Safety and Justice Taskforce and QPS response and strategy for Domestic and Family Violence
· road safety
· Safe Night Precincts
· QPS COVID-19 response
· prevention and disruption
· Red Tape Reduction Committee initiatives
· education, training and recruitment, and QPS lateral transfers and promotions
· Performance Management Framework, Leadership Capability Program
· safety and wellbeing, QPS Suicide Management Framework
· Working for Queensland Survey Results
· performance, crime statistics and complaints reporting, Client Management System
· capability framework
· Workforce Planning and Workforce Allocation Subcommittee
· Service Delivery Program
· QPS 2022-2026 Strategic Plan, 2022-23 Operational Plan and Environmental Scan
· 2022-23 Capital Works Program, 2032 Brisbane Olympic Games. 

	
QPS Assets Committee (now disestablished)

	The Assets Committee aligns the prioritisation of the Services’ assets and project portfolio with the QPS Strategic Plan, government priorities and QPS demand modelling needs.  The Committee monitors and approves QPS prioritisation, planning and management of QPS strategic asset and project portfolios within the Service; delivers appropriate advice on planning, product delivery, stakeholder engagement and prioritisation activities across the QPS asset and project portfolios; endorses business strategy and capability across the Service to meet current and future QPS strategic asset portfolio demand and resource needs; and ensures value through financial prioritisation and planning, and ongoing benefits realisation  
The committee met monthly or as determined by the Chair.  The committee met on three occasions in 2021-22 before it was disestablished on 11 August 2021.  

	Committee members
The following were the Committee members prior to disestablishment:
· Deputy Commissioner Doug Smith, Strategy and Corporate Services
· A/Assistant Commissioner Matthew Vanderbyl, Organisational Capability Command 
· Chief Superintendent Daryl Johnson, Crime and Corruption Commission

	Achievements
In 2021-22, prior to its disestablishment, the Committee considered matters including: 
· proposed staffing model and vehicle allocation for Pimpama Station
· increase of QPS Fleet – Torres Straight Island Police Liaison Officers
· QPS ICT Investment Program 2021-22. 



	QPS People Committee (now disestablished)

	[bookmark: _Hlk50640913]The People Committee aligns the prioritisation of the Services’ people with the QPS Strategic Plan, government priorities and QPS demand modelling needs.  The Committee builds a positive organisational governance culture that reflects the values of the QPS, addresses significant emerging people, culture and safety issues and trends, endorses strategies for improving workforce capacity and capability across the service to meet current and future service demand and address resource constraints, and ensures value through prioritisation and planning of QPS resource allocations.  
The committee met monthly or as determined by the Chair.  The committee met on one occasion in 2021-22 before it was disestablished on 22 July 2021.  

	Committee members
· Deputy Commissioner Tracy Linford, Crime Counter- Terrorism and Specialist Operations
· Assistant Commissioner Charysse Pond, People Capability Command 
· Assistant Commissioner Kevin Guteridge, Central Region

	Achievements
In 2021-22, prior to its disestablishment, the Committee considered matters including: 
· staff member full-time equivalent
· police growth allocations
· training report
· organisational structure change regarding Service Alignment Program.  


Government Bodies
· Commissioner for Police Service Reviews
· Controlled Operations Committee
· Public Interest Monitor
For further information about the Government Bodies refer to page 97 within the appendices. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114508131]Ethics and code of conduct
The delivery of professional policing services must be underpinned by ethical decisions and actions.  These ethical decisions and actions provide the QPS with its most valuable asset, namely its reputation and the confidence and trust that such a reputation inspires in the community. The QPS has a broad range of programs, policies and initiatives that support professional and ethical practice including a robust internal complaints system, policies on declarable associations, gifts and benefits as well as discipline and ethical awareness training. The QPS Integrity Framework and Standard of Professional Practice supplement the Queensland Government values and the Code of Conduct for the Queensland Public Service and outlines the standards of conduct and professional practice expected of all QPS employees.  
Members of the QPS operate under the Service’s Integrity Framework that promotes the principles of Values, Leadership and Accountability which underpin integrity and ethics in the QPS. The framework seeks to ensure the integrity of the organisation is maintained through four key actions that apply to all levels of the organisation. These actions are: Know what is expected, Educate and guide others, Ensure we do the right thing, and Protect our standards.  The framework seeks to promote an actionable process of thinking about integrity and then integrating that thinking into all planning, implementation, monitoring and evaluation processes across the QPS.
Ethical Standards Command’s (ESC) purpose is to protect the high standards of integrity and professionalism necessary to maintain the trust and support of our community.  In 2021-22, ESC continued to promote, monitor and enforce ethical behaviour, integrity and professional practice through education, deterrence and systems improvements.  ESC continued to be the conduit between QPS and oversight bodies such as the Crime and Corruption Commission. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114210833]Reported complaints are continually monitored and reviewed by the QPS to identify primary contributing factors and/or trends which may arise from complaint types and/or the complaint data more generally. All complaints are considered, actioned and investigated as required.  In 2021-22, the QPS received 1,218 complaints by members of the public against officers on or off duty. This figure counts the number of distinct individuals who have either lodged a complaint or lodged a complaint on behalf of another person even if it relates to the same incident. When applying relevant context to this figure, the QPS undertakes millions of interactions with people in the community each day and moreover, each year. Comparatively, very few of those interactions result in complaints relating to the conduct of police.  
As part of its monitoring role, ESC undertakes a range of inspections and evaluations of police facilities including their functions and duties.  During 2021-22 ESC undertook a review of the inspections process to validate the appropriateness of existing compliance processes. ESC is currently implementing a number of business improvements to underpin a compliance culture across the QPS. ESC also analysed the compliance inspections conducted independently by regions and commands to determine key compliance issues and trends across the state.  The outcomes of the inspections are reported to the ELT and the QPS ARCC.  


Risk management and accountability
Risk management 
The Commissioner and senior executives are committed to the management of internal and external risks which may influence strategic objectives.  Risk management is integral to management functions and is a requirement of all Queensland Government departments, including the QPS under section 61 the Financial Accountability Act 2009.  The QPS has implemented an Enterprise Risk Management Framework, adopting the principles and processes outlined in Australian Standard ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management – Guidelines.  This approach integrates risk assessment into the management processes of the organisation and supports compliance with legislative requirements and Queensland Government guidelines.  
Risk management supports the QPS Strategic Plan and Operational Plan, aligning the achievement of organisational objectives to strategic risks and the organisation’s appetite for risk.  The QPS maintains a risk appetite statement and summary within the Enterprise Risk Management Framework.  The statement and summary are intended to provide clarity and set the tone around acceptable and unacceptable risks to the organisation, and support decision making around enterprise risk management at all levels.  A quarterly Strategic Risk Report is also generated to provide an overview of strategic risks impacting the achievement of QPS objectives.  The Board of Management establishes the mandate and commitment set by the QPS executives that underpins the risk management framework. The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and application of the QPS risk management framework. 
Responsibilities for risk management are generally maintained through Executive Leadership Team portfolios across operational and strategic levels of the organisation. The Strategic Risk and Business Continuity capability promote best practice, scan for emerging risk trends and provide advice and support on risk management practices.  
External Scrutiny
This section provides information about external agencies and processes, which examined the operations of QPS or other agencies with findings/issues requiring consideration by, or impacting on, QPS: 
Queensland Audit Office (QAO)
The QAO supports the role of the Auditor-General of Queensland in providing the Parliament with an independent assessment of the financial management and performance activities of public sector entities. The QAO provides an independent audit service and reports to the Parliament to enhance public sector accountability. QAO reports are available online at www.qao.qld.gov.au/reports-resources/parliament.  The QPS remains committed to identifying opportunities for efficiencies in all areas of service delivery.  
Report 4: 2021-22 – 2021 status of Auditor-General’s recommendations
The QAO makes recommendations to state and local government entities to support better delivery of public services and make a difference to the lives of Queenslanders.  The QAO prepared a report on the entities’ self-assessed progress in implementing the performance audit recommendations from the 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 reports to Parliament.  
The report examined 50 entities, 447 individual recommendations and 32 reports to Parliament.  The QPS was responsible for 31 recommendations from six reports, of which 29 are fully implemented and one was partially implemented, and one was no longer applicable  
Queensland Coroner
During 2021-22, 20 recommendations arising from eight coronial inquests were directed to the QPS as either a lead or supporting agency.  The Findings of Inquest and the Government’s response are available at www.courts.qld.gov.au/courts/coroners-court/findings. 
[bookmark: _Hlk115076293]

Women’s Safety Justice Taskforce
The Women’s Safety and Justice Taskforce (the taskforce), chaired by the Honourable Margaret McMurdo AC, was established in March 2021 to examine coercive control and review the need for a specific offence of domestic violence and the experience of women across the criminal justice system.  The first report from the taskforce was released in December 2021 and made 89 recommendations that seek to further reform the justice and domestic and family violence specialist service systems to ensure they keep victims safe and hold perpetrators to account. 
In response to recommendation 41the QPS has commenced work to ensure legal staff participate in regular domestic and family violence training and also consider longer term solutions to ensure legal staff undertake regular tailored domestic and family violence training to support the knowledge and understanding of domestic and family violence and its impact on relevant law. 
The Queensland Government has accepted all 89 recommendations.  The QPS will continue to work with government agencies to implement the recommendations. 
Independent Commission of Inquiry into QPS responses to domestic and family violence
On 10 May 2022, the Queensland Government announced an independent Commission of Inquiry into QPS responses to domestic and family violence as recommended by the Women’s Safety Justice Taskforce report ‘Hear her voice’. 
The Commission is examining Queensland policing responses to domestic and family violence, and to ensure full public confidence in the ability of QPS officers to protect victims and hold perpetrators to account.  
[bookmark: _Hlk112845351]Commission of inquiry relating to the Crime and Corruption Commission
The Commission of Inquiry relating to the Crime and Corruption Commission (CCC) commenced on 7 February 2022.  The Honourable Gerald Edward (Tony) Fitzgerald AC QC was appointed Chairperson and the Honourable Alan Wilson QC was appointed Commissioner for the Commission of Inquiry.  Under the Terms of Reference the Commission of Inquiry is required to inquire into, report and make recommendations with respect to the following matters relating to the CCC:
· the adequacy and appropriateness of the structure of the CCC in relation to use of seconded police officers
· the adequacy and appropriateness of legislation, procedures, practices and processes relating to the charging and prosecution of criminal offences for serious crime and corruption in the context of CCC investigations
· the adequacy and appropriateness of section 49 of the Crime and Corruption Act 2001. 
The Report of the Commission of Inquiry is due to be handed down by 9 August 2022.  
Commission of Inquiry into Forensic DNA Testing in Queensland
On 6 June 2022, the Queensland Government announced an independent Commission of Inquiry into Forensic DNA Testing in Queensland, conducted by former President of the Court of Appeal, retired judge Mr Walter Sofronoff QC.  
The Commission is being established to ensure transparency, identify opportunities for improvement and ensure public confidence in the collection, testing and analysis of DNA in Queensland, and in the criminal justice system more broadly.  The Report of the Commission of Inquiry is due to be handed down by 13 December 2022. 
The Independent Review of Deaths in Custody, Deaths in Police Operations and DV Related Homicides with Prior Police Involvement
On 22 January 2021, in making his findings with respect to the Inquest into the death of Cindy Leigh Miller, State Coroner Terry Ryan recommended the Government consider commissioning an independent review of the current arrangements for the investigation of police-related deaths on behalf of the coroner and the oversight of those investigations.  The Government engaged Professor Lorraine Mazerolle as the Chief Investigator with Professor Elena Marchetti, Professor Janet Ransley and Mr Lincoln Crowley QC (prior to this judicial appointment) as Co-Chief Investigators.  
The review was completed and provided to Government in July 2022.  

[bookmark: _Hlk114491523]Internal audit
The QPS Internal Audit Unit operates under a portfolio service delivery model providing internal audit services to QPS, Office of the Inspector-General Emergency Management (IGEM) and Queensland Fire and Emergency Services (QFES).  It is expected QFES will stand up its own Internal Audit Function in 2022-23.  
[bookmark: _Hlk106950131]Internal Audit continues to provide advice across a wide range of disciplines including risk, assurance, information technology, finance, compliance and general consulting activities for the QPS, IGEM and QFES.  The Head of Internal Audit for QPS is also the nominated Head of Internal Audit for the Office of the IGEM and QFES in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009.  
The work of the Internal Audit Unit is undertaken in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors’ standards and under an approved charter consistent with relevant audit and ethical standards.  
In accordance with the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019, an annual internal audit plan and three-year strategic audit plan sets the direction of the unit. A detailed audit planning and risk assessment process was completed in devising this plan. The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 and Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2022-25 was endorsed by the QPS Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee and approved by the Commissioner on 13 July 2021. The Internal Audit Unit reports regularly to the QPS Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee which reviews the work of the internal audit function. The relationship with the committee is based on Queensland Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines.  
Under its approved charter, the unit reviews compliance (effectiveness), performance (efficiency), financial management and information technology to identify areas of risk and to improve outcomes for the Service. The unit has systems in place to ensure the effective, efficient and economic operation of the audit function.  
In 2021-22, the unit delivered the activities in the approved Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021-2022 using in-house and sourced delivery methods including the engagement of Deloitte. Whilst fieldwork was completed for the majority of audits as at 30 June 2022, two reviews will be carried over to
2022-23 due to the timing or nature of the work.  It is expected all final reports will be delivered by 
31 October 2022.  
Achievements specific to QPS for 2021-22 include:
· delivery of the approved annual internal audit plan with specific QPS audit coverage including:
· Business Continuity Management – Lessons Identified 
· Victorian Government Department of Transport – Information Protection Agreement
· Security Themed Review – Information Access
· ICT Vendor Management
· IT General Controls
· PMO Structure Review
· Prosecutions Outcomes Review. 
· Public Safety Agencies wide reviews for 2021-22 include:
· Enterprise Architecture
· Core Controls. 
· unprogrammed reviews undertaken including those carried forward to 2022-23 due to the timing or nature of the work include:
· Safety Wellbeing and Central Panels Governance Review
· Collaborative Payroll Review (carried forward)
· Transfer Costs (carried forward)
· ISMA Review (carried forward). 
[bookmark: _Hlk114491618]Information systems and recordkeeping
Following the formal disestablishment of Public Safety Business Agency, the QPS Information Management Unit (IMU) operates and manages Information and Recordkeeping systems to support a number of specific recordkeeping functions in QPS, QFES, IGEM, Queensland Ambulance Service and Queensland Shared Services.  This unit also provides strategic recordkeeping advice to QPS and QFES. 
The QPS IMU records management team, provided advice and assistance to QPS during the reporting period resulting in improved efficiencies including: 
· providing training to QPS Strategy and Corporate Services staff to facilitate the capture and management of records relating to ‘executive decision making’ via use of the Objective electronic Document Records Management System (eDRMS) to meet the organisations legislative obligations and broader recordkeeping responsibilitiesworking with QPS business units to identify opportunities to reduce reliance on hardcopy documents and transition to fully electronic processes, delivering business efficiencies
· completion of 441 support jobs during the reporting period, (submitted via ‘BOSS’ tasking software), to provide administrative and system support in use of the Objective eDRMS
· commencing a body of work to optimise use of catalogue fields in the Objective eDRMS that will enable electronic filing processes, utilised by Right to Information Subpoena team, to be streamlined. Once implemented, this change will deliver operational efficiencies with respect to use and access of information required to support functioning of this work unit
· updating of recordkeeping resources provided to regionally based Education and Training Support staff, including provision of access to offsite storage services, to deliver efficiencies in how this function is supported, enabling these staff to operate in a more autonomous capacity
· commencing of a project to upgrade the Objective eDRMS, which will deliver numerous efficiencies, including access to a simplified web browser interface, enabling all key functionalities to be securely accessed across a wide range of devices by end-users
· supporting the creation of 922,541 electronic documents and 210,274 files associated with Weapons Licensing functions, and over 20,000 administrative files for general use
· submission of a fully revised QPS Retention and Disposal Schedule to QPS Organisational Capability Command for review and approval. The structure of the new document is aligned to the whole of government General Retention and Disposal Schedule which will enable both resources to be utilised interchangeably when required. A key benefit of these changes is that future updates to the Schedule will require significantly reduced lead time and minimal structural changes. It is expected that the schedule will be endorsed internally, and formally approved for use by the State Archivist during the next reporting period
· no known breaches of information security with respect to records managed within the Objective eDRMS during the reporting period 
· disposal of records submitted through the Corporate Records Retention and Disposal Program managed by the IMU were sentenced in line with retention periods set out within the whole of government or the QPS Retention and Disposal Schedule 
· no transfers of public records to Queensland State Archives were made during the reporting period.  


[bookmark: _Hlk114491270]Human resources
Strategic workforce planning and performance
[bookmark: _Hlk18335179][bookmark: _Hlk114492974]Workforce profile
[bookmark: _Hlk19726925]The total number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff in QPS was 16,615.1 as at 30 June 2022.  The FTE figure is calculated using the Minimum Obligatory Human Resource Information (MOHRI) aligned information.  
MOHRI is FTE workforce data Queensland Government agencies provide for the biannual Queensland public sector workforce profile report. The MORHI FTE methodology changed in 2019, in line with recommendations from the 2018 Review into Queensland public sector workforce (Coaldrake review). There was a shift from calculating the FTE of public sector employees by their substantive appointment, to calculating the FTE of public sector employees actually paid. Another key change related to leave without pay (LWOP) and leave on half pay. The pre-Coaldrake review methodology excluded officers on LWOP only after 8 weeks continual absence. The current methodology excludes all employees on LWOP in the relevant snapshot fortnight and reduces the FTE of employees on leave on half pay. These changes impact direct comparisons with MOHRI workforce data prior to the methodology changes being implemented in 2019. 
[bookmark: _Hlk47097893]Between 1 July 2021 and 30 June 2022, the QPS permanent separation rate was 3.8% for police officers and 11.5% for permanent staff members (excluding temporary and casual employees).  
The QPS has various policies and processes in place that promote flexible working arrangements and a healthy work-life balance for all QPS employees.  These policies are periodically reviewed to ensure they meet the needs of the service and its employees. 
The QPS also has a dedicated Leadership Centre that facilitates and encourages learning and development of police officers and staff members at all levels of the organisation (see page 57 for more information).  
Figure 2: Target group data1

	Gender
	Number
(Headcount)
	Percentage of total workforce
(Calculated on headcount)

	Woman
	6,406
	36.68%

	Man
	11,037
	63.19%

	Non-binary
	6
	0.03%

	Diversity Groups
	Number
(Headcount)
	Percentage of total workforce
(Calculated on headcount)

	Women
	6407
	36.69%

	Aboriginal Peoples and Torres Strait Islander Peoples
	400
	2.29%

	People with disability
	211
	1.21%

	Culturally and Linguistically Diverse – Born overseas in a mainly non-English speaking country
	225
	1.29%

	Culturally and Linguistically Diverse – Speak a language at home other than English including ATSI/ASSI languages
	704

	4.03%

	
	Number
(Headcount)
	Percentage of total Leadership Cohort
(Calculated on headcount)

	Women in Leadership Roles2
	69
	18.60%


1. To ensure privacy, in tables where there are less than 5 respondents in a category, specific numbers should be replaced by <5
2. Women in Leadership Roles are considered those positions that are Senior Officer and equivalent and above. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114509513]Attraction and Retention
People Capability Command (PCAP) is primarily responsible for the police academies in Oxley, Wacol and Townsville, education and training and the police recruiting.  During 2021-22, PCAP delivered various activities, including: 
· additional recruitment activities including targeted professional marketing campaigns to diverse communities, regional and remote areas and broad demographic groups 
· launched the ‘You’re Made For It’ campaign in November 2021 to showcase the unique lived experiences of four serving police officers to inspire potential applicants 
· recruitment of additional Queensland Government Protective Service Officers to support the QPS’s response to COVID-19 health pandemic. 
Additionally, the QPS commemorated the 50th anniversary of the opening of the Oxley Police Academy with the first intake of police cadets.  The opening of the Oxley Police Academy in 1972 revolutionised the police training delivered to recruits.  Since then, recruit training has been at the forefront of policing methods, using technology for applied learning in real world scenarios, and focusing on help for victims, professional service and values. 
Over the past 50 years, the thousands of recruits who have passed through the Oxley and Townsville academies have made a significant contribution to the culture of QPS, excellence and agility which defines the QPS.  
Leadership and professional development opportunities
The QPS offered a range of opportunities and pathways to access professional development to police officers and staff members in 2021-22, including: 
· the Leadership Capability Program (LCP), launched in January 2022, provides a three-stage program for the next-level development embracing education, experience and effective mentoring.  The LCP was developed to provide a fit-for-purpose program focussed on developing leaders who can meet the challenges of policing in an ever-changing environment.  In its first six months of operation, more than 2,600 police officers and staff members have commenced their leadership journey through LCP
· the QPS Leadership Centre aims to drive a culture of leadership at all levels of the organisation, and to build leadership capability through the fusion of education, effective mentoring, and workplace experience.  With a dedicated staff from diverse backgrounds, the Leadership Centre delivers and coordinates a range of fit-for-purpose, contemporary development programs and learning opportunities to support QPS personnel as they build their leadership capability.  The Centre also administers scholarship programs provided by RACQ, Suncorp, Public Sector Management Program through QUT
· QPS partnering with Skillsoft to launch Q-Learn in January 2022, a digital education platform that provides access to thousands of blended learning resources focused on leadership, professional development and wellbeing.  Q-Learn provides a self-paced, short-shot learning resource that can be tailored to individual development needs or interests
· the Leadership, Engagement and Development (LEAD) program is targeted at Constables, Senior Constables and staff members at AO3/AO4 (or equivalent) and provides foundational skills in leadership, problem solving, conflict management, change management and mental health and resilience.  The LEAD program involves a three-day, face-to-face workshop that was offered under a limited schedule in 2021-22 due to COVID-19
· staff members (up to OO6/AO4) can undertake TAFE studies in leadership and management at Certificate IV, Diploma, and Advanced Diploma levels.  Staff Member Training also offer bespoke courses for all QPS members on topics such as emotional intelligence, leadership, communication, problem solving, team building and difficult conversations
· professional development opportunities for senior leaders including the Australian Institute of Police Management, Australian and New Zealand School of Government, Australian Institute of Management, Australian Institute of Company Directors and a number of universities.  
[bookmark: _Hlk83133655][bookmark: _Hlk114491228]Our People Matter
[bookmark: _Hlk111733406]The ‘Our People Matter’ Strategy continued to directly support QPS members across the state for a fifth consecutive year, delivering initiatives based on four pillars: Healthy Bodies, Healthy Minds, Safe Workplaces, Fair and Positive Workplaces. The strategy is a collaboration between the QPS, five employee unions and two corporate sponsors, who jointly promote the pillars to improve organisational culture, engagement, empowerment, and participation at all levels. 
District ‘Our People Matter’ Champions, made up of police and civilian personnel, promote the strategy in their respective regions, driven by frontline ideas to improve the physical and mental health, and the safety and wellbeing of members and their families. 
Key achievements for 2021-22 include: 
· statewide QPS Police Commissioner Speaking Series, also livestreamed to Workplace to enable virtual participation
· statewide ‘Life Beyond the Service’ and ‘Transition to Retirement’ seminars
· mental health awareness and improvement seminars, supported by QPS Psychologists, Chaplains and HealthStart professionals
· environmental improvements in workspaces (examples include furniture for recreational areas, essential gym equipment for isolated stations)
· member and family fun days
· sporting activities. 
Inclusion and Diversity
[bookmark: _Hlk47598719]The QPS is committed to building an inclusive and diverse workplace in which all employees feel valued, included and welcome and have equal access to opportunities. To ensure the organisation maintains a strong focus on inclusion and diversity, the QPS revitalised the ‘Inclusion and Diversity Restorative Engagement and Cultural Reform Program’, transitioning from ‘Juniper’ to the ‘Workplace Assessment and Support Team’ (WAST) and the ‘Cultural Transformation Team’ (CTT).
During the reporting period, WAST and CTT:
· assisted 15 individual work units through the bespoke cultural reform program
· addressed issues in the workplace based on the Working for Queensland Survey, face-to-face interviews and a multifactional leadership survey
· held tailored workshops to directly address areas of opportunity
· provided support to current serving and past members by strengthening procedures for members to be afforded an exemption for reporting under the defined sections of the Anti-Discrimination Act 1991
· in collaboration with the QPS advocacy networks, supported the QPS Inclusion and Diversity Plan 2021/2025 with ‘action-plans’ delivered by the networks
· implemented the SBS Inclusion Program –seven diversity online learning products (OLP) designed to be completed over a three-year period by all QPS employees. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114509634]Safety, Injury Management and Wellbeing Services
The QPS has a comprehensive management system for the identification and management of risks and hazards.  This includes a strong consultative framework for health and safety, which includes 32 Health and Safety Committees across the state representing all workers within groups, districts, regions and commands.  There are also 106 elected Health and Safety representatives who provide representation for all workers within their group on health and safety matters.  These committees and representatives are complemented by 242 trained Safety Advisors who provide advice and assistance to management in fulfilling health and safety obligations.  The QPS Health and Safety team has played a significant role in the COVID-19 response, providing advice and support to QPS members as a member of the COVID Command.  
The QPS continues to focus on destigmatising mental health issues and promoting and encouraging members to seek help and counselling services either internally or externally from the Service. The number of police accessing free counselling services through external providers decreased from 998 in 2020-21 to 593 in 2021-22.  A further 413 staff members and recruits also accessed these external counselling services during the same period, an increase from 337 in the previous reporting period, which is a positive trend supporting QPS efforts to destigmatise mental health and encourage people to seek help.  Utilisation of 1800 ASSIST, a 24-hour employee assistance telephone service provided by Benestar was 1.8% in 2021-22, a slight increase from 1.7% in the previous year.  The utilisation rate for internal counselling services via QPS psychologists and social workers remains relatively stable, averaging approximately 900 client contacts per month.  The Employee Assistance Service helps prevent and manage mental health issues for employees by providing strategic advice, short term interventions, manager coaching and referral to external services for a wide range of organisational and personal issues. 
[bookmark: _Hlk49508585][bookmark: _Hlk47099658][bookmark: _Hlk49270036]The Psychological Assessment Unit (PAU) provides psychological assessment services to the QPS and undertakes psychological assessments for police recruits and specialist work units.  It has expanded its scope to implement and review members self-psychological screening services through the Psych Health Screen (PHS) platform.  The PHS, an early-intervention and referral service, was approved for implementation across the Service in April 2020.  The PHS process involves an internet-based mental health screen and provides an opportunity for members to have a follow-up interview with an occupational psychologist.  During 2021-22, 672 members completed this initiative with 293 members referred for further support.
For the same period, the PAU conducted 1,623 psychological assessments of persons applying to become police recruits and a further 443 selection assessments were conducted on persons applying for identified ‘high risk roles’ in the QPS.  The PAU has also conducted workshops regarding personality and mental health as part of leadership development and specialist training courses. 
Internal confidential support services
The QPS has various internal confidential support services available for its members which include Senior Psychologists/Senior Social Workers, Peer Support Officers and Chaplains.  
These services are available free of charge to all QPS members including police officers, recruits and staff members.  QPS members are able to seek these services for work and/or personal issues.  
Senior Psychologists/Senior Social Workers, formerly known as Human Services Officers, enhance employee wellbeing through provision of organisational psychological services to reduce the risk of psychological harm in the workplace. 
Peer Support Officers are police officers and staff members of the QPS who volunteer their time to assist and support colleagues experiencing personal and/or work-related difficulties.  
QPS Chaplains provide a ‘safe place’ for all current and former QPS members and their immediate families to seek support for either personal or workplace matters.  Police Chaplains regularly visit police establishments, offering face-to-face support for any issues that may be impacting QPS employees. 

[bookmark: _Hlk83192966][bookmark: _Hlk83192955][bookmark: _Hlk114491251]Working for Queensland
Working for Queensland (WFQ) is an annual survey that measures employee perceptions of their work, manager, team and the QPS. The survey is administered by the Public Service Commission and explores our people’s perceptions of their workplace climate in key areas.
Results from the WFQ survey drive workplace changes across the Service and helps the QPS measure how the Service is progressing towards the QPS’s strategic objective to build a connected, engaged and job-ready workforce with the health, wellbeing, and safety of our people a priority. 
During 2020-21, the QPS placed a strong emphasis on supporting leaders to engage with the WFQ results and developing people-focussed strategies to support members through changes associated with strategic programs and the COVID-19 response. To support these strategies, the QPS concentrated on leadership development including change management and effective communication, ensuring a human centric approach was undertaken to improve how our people experienced work.
The QPS utilised the Workplace internal communications platform to facilitate two-way communication across the state and increase transparency of information, encourage strong participation in the survey and enabling our leadership to be active and visible to all ranks.
In 2021, the WFQ strategic objective results were:
· agency engagement		51%
· organisational leadership		41%
· innovation				50%
The full 2021 WFQ survey results are available to view at www.forgov.qld.gov.au/working-queensland-survey. 
The 2022 WFQ survey will be conducted across Queensland Government agencies in September 2022.  
QPS Pride Network
The QPS Pride Network, previously known as the QPS LGBTI+ Network, promotes Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Intersex+ pride within the QPS providing a dedicated support framework to its members statewide.  
The network is made up volunteer members who work to ensure LGBTIQ+ people in the QPS have access to support, resources, tools, and assistance.  
Key achievements during the reporting period include:
· endorsement to change the name of the QPS LGBTI+ Support Network to ‘QPS Pride Network’
· attending external educational events through the QPS’ membership of Pride in Diversity
· developing an action plan to focus on enhancing support to regional members, staff members, and gender diverse members of the QPS
· participation in inclusion and diversity workshops held by Change and Engagement Unit within Communication, Culture and Engagement Division
· maintaining a strong visible presence on the QPS Workplace platform. 
[bookmark: _Hlk114509679]Central Panels Unit
The purpose of the Central Panels Unit (CPU) is to provide an independent, centralised and coordinated approach to state-wide promotional panels, initially to the ranks of Sergeant and Senior Sergeant to improve transparency, consistency, and fairness. The CPU commenced operations on
4 January 2021 and has conducted all selection processes from that time for the rank of Sergeant and Senior Sergeant.  
In 2021-22, CPU have officiated on 304 selection panels and assessed over 4,000 applications. The CPU workload is continuing to surge due to the recommencement in advertising commissioned officer positions (Police Inspector and above) and projected increases in retirements and separations, which will make meeting the demand a challenge.  
The CPU is committed to ensuring promotional appointments are based on merit, impartiality, and ethical decision-making. The CPU have become highly skilled in this area and subsequently review numbers and rates for reassessments of selection panels has fallen dramatically. Only four reviews proceeded to hearing during 2021-22, showing that members have confidence in the integrity of the selection processes. 
The CPU continue to assist officers around the state in their career development through feedback sessions, presentations, and anecdotal advice via Workplace. The CPU also provided statewide education during the transition to the Leadership Competencies for Queensland competencies and the new merit selection policy which was implemented in July 2021.  
[bookmark: _Hlk114493031][bookmark: _Hlk51244978]Enterprise Bargaining Agreement
The QPS Certified Agreement 2019 and QPS Protective Services Officers Agreement 2019 both nominally expired on 30 June 2022. The QPS are currently negotiating with the Queensland Police Union of Employees and the Queensland Police Commissioned Officers Union for a replacement QPS Agreement and the Together Union for a replacement QPS PSO Agreement in accordance with the Government's Public Sector Wages Policy. 
Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment
No early retirement, redundancy or retrenchment packages were paid to QPS employees during 2021-22. 
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Appendices
Government bodies
	Commissioner for Police Service Reviews

	Act/instrument
	The Commissioner for Police Service Reviews is established under the Police Service Administration Act 1990 and Police Service Administration Regulation 2016.

	Functions
	The Review Commissioner is responsible for hearing grievances from police officers relating to appointments, promotions, transfers or disciplinary actions made under the Act.

Appeals are heard before a Review Commissioner nominated by the Crime and Corruption Commission yet otherwise independent of the Crime and Corruption Commission and the QPS. Where a matter progresses to a hearing, the Review Commissioner will consider the material presented and prepare written recommendations for the Police Commissioner who will make the final decision. Where the Police Commissioner does not implement the recommendation, reasons must be provided to the Review Commissioner and the parties to review.

The Crime and Corruption Commission provides secretariat support to the review function.

	Further information about the Commissioner for Police Service Reviews is available at www.ccc.qld.gov.au/. 

	Controlled Operations Committee

	Act
	The Controlled Operations Committee is established under the Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000.

	Functions
	The Controlled Operations Committee is responsible for considering and making recommendations about applications for an authority, or variation to an authority, to conduct a controlled operation under Chapter 11 of the Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000.

	Achievements
	The committee provides its own annual report after 30 June each year, detailing the work and activities of the QPS under Chapter 11 Controlled Operations of the Act for the preceding 12 months. 
The committee’s annual report is available online at www.parliament.qld.gov.au/work-of-assembly/tabled-papers.

	[bookmark: _Hlk50468277]Financial reporting
	Records are inspected by the Chairperson of the Controlled Operations Committee. Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the QPS financial statements which are certified by the Auditor-General of Queensland.





	
Controlled Operations Committee (cont’d)

	Remuneration

	Position
	Name
	Meetings
	Approved fee
	Approved sub-committee fees
	Actual fees received

	Independent Member and Chairperson
	The Honourable Roslyn Atkinson AO
(Appointed Independent Member 16/11/2022)
	6
	$520
	n/a
	$2,600*

	Independent Member and Chairperson
	Mr Manus Boyce
	6 (Includes annual inspection)
	$167
	n/a
	$1,002

	Member (QPS Commissioner’s nominee)
	Acting Detective Chief Superintendent Denzil Clark
	5
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a

	Member (QPS Commissioner’s nominee)
	Acting Detective Chief Superintendent Colin Briggs
	3
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a

	Member (QPS Commissioner’s nominee)
	Acting Detective Chief Superintendent Michael O’Dowd
	3
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a

	Member (CCC Chairperson)
	Alan MacSporran
(Resigned 28/01/2022)
	6
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a

	Member (CCC Chairperson)
	Bruce Barbour
(Appointed A/Chairperson 28/01/2022)
(Appointed Chairperson 02/07/2022)
	4
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a

	A/Member (CCC Chairperson nominee)
	Ms Sharon Loder
	1
	n/a
	n/a
	n/a

	No. of scheduled meetings
	12 (Includes annual inspection)

	Total out of pocket expenses
	$3,602


* The fee for one meeting in the reporting period was paid in the 2022-2023 financial year and is not included in this total
	Public Interest Monitor

	Act 
	The Public Interest Monitor is appointed under the Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000 and the Crime and Corruption Act 2001.

	Functions
	The Public Interest Monitor has the following functions for surveillance device warrants, retrieval warrants, approvals of the use of surveillance devices under emergency authorisations, and covert search warrants:
a) to monitor compliance by police officers with chapter 9 of the Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000 (the Act) in relation to matters concerning applications for covert search warrants
b) to monitor compliance by law enforcement officers with chapter 13 of the Act in relation to matters concerning applications for surveillance device warrants, retrieval warrants and approvals of the use of surveillance devices under emergency authorisations
c) to appear at any hearing of an application to a Supreme Court judge for a warrant or approval mentioned in paragraph a) or b), or to a magistrate for a warrant mentioned in paragraph b), to test the validity of the application, and for that purpose at the hearing, to –
(i) present questions for the applicant to answer and examine or cross-examine any witness
(ii) make submissions on the appropriateness of granting the application to appear at a consideration of a report made to a Supreme Court judge or a magistrate or given to the monitor and referred to a judge or magistrate under section 357 of the Act
d) to appear at a consideration of a report made to a Supreme Court judge or a magistrate or given to the monitor and referred to a judge or magistrate under section 357 of the Act
e) to gather statistical information about the use and effectiveness of covert search warrants, surveillance device warrants, control orders, preventative detention orders, official warnings for consorting and public safety orders.
f) to report as required by this Act on any matter about which this Act expressly requires the Public Interest Monitor to report
g) whenever the public interest monitor considers it appropriate
(i) to give to the Commissioner a report on noncompliance by police officers with chapter 9 of the Act; or
(ii) to give to the chief executive officer of a law enforcement agency a report on noncompliance by law enforcement officers of the law enforcement agency with chapter 13 of the Act.
The Public Interest Monitor also has the following functions:
a) under the Criminal Code of the Commonwealth, to exercise the power conferred on the monitor under the following sections –
· section 104.12 (Service, explanation and notification of an interim control order)
· section 104.12A (Election to confirm control order)
· section 104.14 (Confirming an interim control order)
· section 104.18 (Application by the person for a revocation or variation of a control order)
· section 104.17 (Service of a declaration, or a revocation, variation or confirmation of a control order)
· section 104.19 (Application by the Australian Federal Police Commissioner for a revocation or variation of a control order)
· section 104.23 (Application by the Australian Federal Police Commissioner for addition of obligations, prohibitions or restrictions)
b) under the Terrorism (Preventative Detention) Act 2005, to exercise the power conferred on the monitor under the following sections –
· section 14 (General provisions that apply if the Public Interest Monitor must be notified about an application to the issuing authority)
· section 73 (Supreme Court hearing and decision)


	Public Interest Monitor (cont’d)

	Functions (cont’d)

	c) to gather statistical information about the use and effectiveness of control orders and preventative detention orders under the Acts mentioned in paragraphs a) and b)
d) whenever the Public Interest Monitor considers it appropriate – to give to the Commissioner a report on noncompliance by police officers with the Terrorism (Preventative Detention) Act 2005.
The Public Interest Monitor must also report in relation to:
· official warnings for consorting (“OWFC”) issued by QPS officers; and 
· public safety orders made by QPS commissioned officers under the Peace and Good Behaviour Act 1982.
The Public Interest Monitor is required to report on the following matters: 
· the number of OWFC given during the year; 
· the number of times the giving of an OWFC led to a person committing an offence against: 
· section 790 PPRA (assault or obstruct police officer); or
· section 791 PPRA (contravene direction or requirement of police officer); 
· the extent of compliance by the QPS with chapter 2, part 6A of the PPRA; and
· the use of OWFC generally. 
The Public Interest Monitor is responsible for the recording, reporting and inspection regime for telecommunications interception in accordance with the Telecommunications Interception Act 2009 which enables the use by the QPS and the Crime and Corruption Commission of Commonwealth telecommunications interception powers as a tool for the investigation of serious offences. 
The Public Interest Monitor is entitled to appear at the hearing of the application for a telecommunications interception warrant to test the validity of the application and, for that purpose at the hearing, to –
a) ask questions of any person giving information to the eligible Judge or nominated Administrative Appeals Tribunal member; and
b) make submissions to the eligible Judge or nominated Administrative Appeals Tribunal member about the following maters – 
(i) in relation to an application for a warrant in relation to a telecommunications service
(ii) in relation to an application for a warrant in relation to a person.
In addition, the Public Interest Monitor has record-keeping oversight to ensure eligible authorities keep documents connected with the issue of warrants in accordance with the Telecommunications Interception Act 2009.  
As the inspecting entity for the QPS, the Public Interest Monitor:
a) must inspect the eligible authority’s records as required under section 23 of the legislation to ascertain the extent of compliance by the authority’s officers
b) must report in writing to the Minister about the results of the inspections
may do anything necessary or convenient for the performance of the functions mentioned in (a) and (b).

	Achievements
	The annual report of the Public Interest Monitor is available at www.parliament.qld.gov.au/work-of-assembly/tabled-papers. 

	Financial reporting
	Financial transactions made with the Public Interest Monitor are accounted for in the QPS financial statements which are certified by the Auditor-General of Queensland. 

	Remuneration

	Position
	Meetings*
	Approved fee
	Approved sub-committee fees
	Actual fees received**

	Public Interest Monitor
David Adsett
	66
	A service fee of $450.00 per hour to a maximum of $2,250.00 per day
	n/a
	$188,597.00

	Deputy Public Interest Monitor
Patricia Kirkman-Scroope
	27
	A service fee of $450.00 per hour to a maximum of $2,250.00 per day
	n/a
	$75,891.75

	Deputy Public Interest Monitor
Gail Hartridge
	36 
	A service fee of $450.00 per hour to a maximum of $2,250.00 per day
	
	$66,156.75

	Public Interest Monitor (cont’d)

	No. of scheduled meetings
	129

	Total out of pocket expenses
	$330,645.50



* number of meetings refers to the number of court/tribunal appearances (where there may be one or multiple applications) and excludes inspections and incidental meetings. 
** Actual fees received includes all fees related to the Public Interest Monitor functions including applications, inspections and incidental meetings. 



Acronyms

	ARO
	Alternative Reporting Option
	
	LCP
	Leadership Capability Program

	ARCC
	Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
	
	LEAD
	Leadership, Engagement and Development

	ACCCE
	Australian Centre to Counter Child Exploitation
	
	MOHRI
	Minimum Obligatory Human Resource Information

	ANZCTC
	Australia-New Zealand Counter-Terrorism Committee
	
	MPB
	Mobile Police Beats

	BOM
	Board of Management\
	
	NWQ
	Neighbourhood Watch Queensland

	CPU
	Central Panels Unit
	
	OLP
	Online learning product

	CCLO
	Cross-Cultural Liaison Officer
	
	OCG
	Organised Crime Gangs

	CTT
	Cultural Transformation Team
	
	OCCG
	Organised Crime Gangs Group

	DCC
	Demand and Capability Committee
	
	OMCG
	Outlaw Motorcycle Gangs

	DCYJMA
	Department of Children, Youth Justice and Multicultural Affairs
	
	PCAP
	People Capability Command

	TMR
	Department of Transport and Main Roads
	
	PLO
	Police Liaison Officer

	DFV
	Domestic and Family Violence
	
	PCYC
	Police-Citizens Youth Club

	eDRMS
	Electronic Document Records Management System
	
	QAO
	Queensland Audit Office

	ESC
	Ethical Standards Command
	
	QFES
	Queensland Fire and Emergency Services

	ELT
	Executive Leadership Team
	
	QHVSG
	Queensland Homicide Victims Support Group

	FNMAU
	First Nations and Multicultural Affairs Unit
	
	QPCYWA
	Queensland Police- Citizens Youth Welfare Association 

	FTE
	Full-time Equivalent
	
	QPS
	Queensland Police Service

	ICT
	Information and Communication Technology
	
	QPV
	Queensland Police Vessel

	IMU
	Information Management Unit
	
	QUT
	Queensland University of Technology

	IGEM
	Inspector-General Emergency Management
	
	RoGS
	Report on Government Services

	SAP
	Service Alignment Program
	
	TSIPLO
	Torres Strait Island Police Liaison Officer

	SDP
	Service Delivery Program
	
	VIP
	Volunteers in Policing

	SDRP
	Service Delivery Redesign Project
	
	WFQ
	Working for Queensland

	SDS
	Service Delivery Statement
	
	WAST
	Workplace Assessment and Support Team






Compliance checklist

	Summary of requirement
	Basis for requirement
	Annual report reference

	Letter of compliance
	· A letter of compliance from the accountable officer or statutory body to the relevant Minister/s
	ARRs – section 7
	2

	Accessibility
	· Table of contents
· Glossary
	ARRs – section 9.1
	2, 102

	
	· Public availability
	ARRs – section 9.2
	1

	
	· Interpreter service statement
	Queensland Government Language Services Policy
ARRs – section 9.3
	1

	
	· Copyright notice
	Copyright Act 1968
ARRs – section 9.4
	1

	
	· Information Licensing
	QGEA – Information Licensing
ARRs – section 9.5
	1

	General information
	· Introductory Information
	ARRs – section 10
	7-11

	Non-financial performance
	· Government’s objectives for the community and whole-of-government plans/specific actions
	ARRs – section 11.1
	9-11, 15

	
	· Agency objectives and performance indicators
	ARRs – section 11.2
	8, 25-39

	
	· Agency service areas and service standards
	ARRs – section 11.3
	25-29

	Financial performance
	· Summary of financial performance
	ARRs – section 12.1
	21-24

	Governance – management and structure
	· Organisational structure 
	ARRs – section 13.1
	16-17

	
	· Executive management
	ARRs – section 13.2
	40-41

	
	· Government bodies (statutory bodies and other entities)
	ARRs – section 13.3
	51, 97-101

	
	· Public Sector Ethics 
	Public Sector Ethics Act 1994
ARRs – section 13.4
	51

	
	· Human Rights 
	Human Rights Act 2019
ARRs – section 13.5
	12-13

	
	· Queensland public service values
	ARRs – section 13.6
	7-8

	Governance – risk management and accountability
	· Risk management
	ARRs – section 14.1
	52

	
	· Audit committee
	ARRs – section 14.2
	47

	
	· Internal audit
	ARRs – section 14.3
	54

	
	· External scrutiny
	ARRs – section 14.4
	52-53

	
	· Information systems and recordkeeping
	ARRs – section 14.5
	55

	
	· Information Security attestation
	ARRs – section 14.6
	13

	Governance – human resources
	· Strategic workforce planning and performance
	ARRs – section 15.1
	56-61

	
	· Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment
	Directive No.04/18 Early Retirement, Redundancy and Retrenchment 
ARRs – section 15.2
	61

	Open Data
	· Statement advising publication of information
	ARRs – section 16
	1

	
	· Consultancies 
	ARRs – section 31.1
	www.data.qld.gov.au

	
	· Overseas travel
	ARRs – section 31.2
	www.data.qld.gov.au

	
	· Queensland Language Services Policy
	ARRs – section 31.3
	www.data.qld.gov.au

	Financial statements
	· Certification of financial statements
	FAA – section 62
FPMS – sections 38, 39 and 46
ARRs – section 17.1
	92

	
	· Independent Auditor’s Report
	FAA – section 62
FPMS – section 46
ARRs – section 17.2
	93-96



FAA 	Financial Accountability Act 2009 
FPMS 	Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019
ARRs	Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies
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[CATEGORY NAME], $23.0M
[CATEGORY NAME], $36.0M

Appropriation revenue	User charges and fees	Grants and other contributions	Other revenue	Gains on disposal of assets	Gains on revaluation of assets	2573.9189999999999	188.73599999999999	30.712	23.024999999999999	6.2770000000000001	35.976999999999997	

[CATEGORY NAME], $7.0M
[CATEGORY NAME], $0.2M

Employee expenses	Supplies and services	Grants and subsidies	Depreciation and amortisation	Revaluation decrement	Interest on lease liability	Other expenses	2229.5059999999999	466.947	6.9610000000000003	127.889	0	0.21199999999999999	27.13	



Cash	Receivables	Inventories	Prepayments	Intangibles	Property, plant and equipment	Right-of-use assets	5.8390000000000004	166.56399999999999	7.0670000000000002	52.643999999999998	27.853999999999999	1949.809	9.8780000000000001	


[CATEGORY NAME], 
[VALUE]

Payables	Accrued employee benefits	Lease liabilities	Other current liabilities	42.738999999999997	74.697000000000003	10.590999999999999	11.436	
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Refer to note 13 n the financial report
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Responsibilities of the department for the financial report

‘The Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with the Financial Accountabity Act 2009, the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for
‘such intemal control as the Accountable Offcer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that s free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

‘The Accountable Officer is also responsible for assessing the department's abilty to continue
a5 a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concem and using the
‘going concen basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the department or to
otherwise cease operations.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
‘whole s free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
‘auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
‘Standards will ahways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the econormic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report

As part of an auditin accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

= Identfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrde of intemal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. This is not done for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the departments intemal controls, but
allows me to express an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the department.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the department’s use of the going concern basis of
‘accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
department’s abilty to continue as a going concem. If| conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial report o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. | base my conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the departmentto
cease to continue as a going concern.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Accountable Officer regarding, among other matters, the planned
‘scope and timing of the audit and significant audt findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

From the matters communicated with the Accountable Officer, | determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because
the adverse consequences of doing 5o would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Statement

In accordance with s. 40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2022:
a) I received all the information and explanations | required.

b) | consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and
keeping of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Prescribed requirements scope

‘The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Financial Accountabilty Act 2009, any other Act and the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019. The applicable requirements include those for keeping financial
records that comecty record and explain the department’s transactions and account
balances to enable the preparation of a true and fai financial report.

30 August 2022

) (o
1

Michael Claydon Queensland Audit Office
s delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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QUEENSLAND POLICE SERVICE

CONMISSIONER'S OFFICE.
200 ROMA STREET BRISBANE OLD 4000 AUSTRALIA

26 September 2022

‘The Honourable Mark Furner MP
‘Acting Minister for Police and Corrective Services and
Acting Minister for Fire and Emergency Services
Level 35,1 William Street

BRISBANE QLD 4001

Dear Minister,

Tam pleased to submit for presentation to the Parliament the Annual Report
20212022 and financial statements for the Queensland Police Service.

I certify that this Annual Report complies with:
«the prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019, and

« the detailed requirements set outin the Annual report requirements for
Queensland Government agencies.

A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements is provided at page 104
of this annual report,

Yours sincerely

M

KATARINA CARROLL APM
COMMISSIONER

QUEENSLAND POLICE SERVI
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Quesnsiand Police Service
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes

Income from continuing operations.
‘Apgropriaton revenuo
User charges and foes
Grans and oter contutors
Otherreverue
Total revenue

Gains on disposal
Gains on revakaton of sssets 1
Totalincome from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Empioyee exerses 7
‘Supples and servces: @
Grants and subsides
Dopreciaion and amorsalon 1214
Impaiment losses/gans)

Revakiation decrement "
Intereston ezxe fabily

Other expanses: 10
Total expenses from continuing operations

Oporating rasult for the year

Other comprehansiva incom ot recassiiod

subsaquantl to operating asult
Incroasel{docrease) n asselrovaksaton suphis

Totalother comprahensive income.

Total compraensiva income.

Tho accampanying nolos form partoftheso sttomens.

2573818
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0712
2305

Zat6352
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2229508
aas9er
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127889
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27,130
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104850
104560

104860

2021

225806
7757

213080
5720

256363
5085

—zEEar

205325
28238
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404
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38035

172806
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Queensiand Police Service
Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2022

fssots

Current assats
Gash
Recahabls
bvertories

Prepayments
Noncurent assets cassiied as hek fo salo

Totalcumant assets

Non-currant assats
Intanglo assots
Property,plant and oquipment
Rightotusoassos.

Total non-curent sssats

Totalassats
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Accrued employee benefis
Loase billes
Other current labiltios
Totalcurrant liabilties

Non-current fabil
Lease labites
Total non-current lisbities
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Equity

Contbuted squiy
Accumulted surphs
‘Asset revalation surpls

Totaloquity

Thoaccompanying notes form partoftheso statements.

Notes
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Queensland Police Service
Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Gontibuted squity
Opening balance
Trarsactons wih owners as owners:
‘Appropriated equiy adustment
Not trars ors from Machinory-of-Government changes (QGAIR)
Netransfers from - PSBA 1 Ju 2020
Other et transkrs o oher Government enties
Nl rarefers from - PSBA 1 July2021
Closing balance

Accumulated surplusi(deficit)
Opening baance

Oporating resul

Closing balance

Ast revaluation surplus

Opering bakince
Increasldocroase) n asset ovaluston surphis
Closing baance

Totloquity

Notes 2022

751
104880
05411

Zewier

2021
000

16832

35003
69057
1718647

Lenoawn

rac

* Assel revaluaton surpks balence by clss - Mjor plsnt and equipment $9.762m (2021: $0.680m), Land $43.093m (2021
i) Buiings $51704m (2021: i) and nfastruciure $0.852m (2021: $0091m).

Tho acoompanying pos form part of thes statomens.
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Quesnsland Police Service
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2022

202 2021
s000 5000
Cash flows from operating activites
flows:
Servie agpropriation ecapts 255460 2217455
User charges and foes 185253 92576
Grants and ther contabutons 11971 45509
GST irgut taxcrodts from ATO 80248 44374
GSTcolected fom customers 17200 13885
Otrer 22508 6720
Outtns:
Employes expensas (246019 oS50
‘Suples and sarvices: (2438 (81870)
Grants and subsidies (6981) (6.202)
GSTpaid tosupplers (63799) (@83562)
GSTremited WATO 7201 (13885)
Gter (301) 6529)
Not cash provided byl(used In) operating actiities 3708 £
‘Cash flows from nvosting activities
nflovs:
‘Sals of ropary,plant and equbment 278 0003
Qutows:
Paymens for property, piantand equipment (126589) (10.48)
Payman forintangibles (5.248) .07
Not cash provided by(used in) investing activities a1y Gr7.502)
Cash flows from financing activties
Inflows:
Equiy ijectons. 4373 94849
Outtons:
Equiy windrawals (s8.087) 0515
Fnanco oaso payments. 019 (.49
Not cash provided by (used in) financing acthitis (1.313) 37,835
Net ncreasai(docrease) in cash @3391) (72058)
Incroaso  cash from arsfors betwoen Govermment entes 15,203 52583
Cashat begining of frarcal year
Cash atend of financia year

Tho accompanyig notes o partof theso seemonts.




image26.png
Queensiand Police Service
Notes to the statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2022

2022
§000
Reconciliation of operating result to net cash from operating activities.
Operating result :
Non-cash items included n operating resut:
Deprociaton and amortsatin 127,889
Donations. @
Net ganfoss on sak ofpraperty, plant and equipment «15%0)
Revaluation decrement ¥
Gais on revaktion of assels @sgm)
Intorostoxpense 21
Change n assats and labii
Increasodecreaso) n aceru @210
(incroaseYdocrease in annualleavereimbursoment rocoivablo (10168)
(IncroasoYdocroase inappropriaton rovenue mceivable (18.382)
(increasadocreasa in GST rocoivable @551)
(incoasedocrmase innventaries 3884
(increase decrease infong servie leave rembursament receivable @ost)
(Incroaso)docroase in other recolvables )
(incroase)idocoase in other curent assets @)
Increasel(decrease) h payables (@301)
(incoase)Hocrease n ads recaivables (10422)
Increasol{decreaso) i unearmed rovenuo 771
IncreasoNdecreaso) n apprpraton rovenus payable )
Net cash from operating activiies —wt

Accounting Poiy -Cash
(Cash assots nchides cash on hand and allcash and choques receipled bunot Banked as at30 June.

2021
000

(102,005)

ss04

(284)
@879)
38035

5

8595
(13.799)

(@188)
(1.098)
ts81)
123)
387
7221
(@854)
@216
(7.600)
et

The department has autharisation to operate in overdral witin a specfied mit in accordance wih the Financial
Acoourtabilty Act 2009. On 2 Fobruary 2013, an overdral facity was approved with a i of S70m. On 29 June 2022, an
Increase to the overdra it was approved 1o $130m. Ths faclty remained ful undrawn at 30 June 2022 and s avalable

foruse n the next reportng perid.

Recondliation of lease liabllities arising from financing activities.

Oponing balanceas at 1 Juy 13581
Acquisiions:

Acqustons 355
Transters i fram other Govemment edies - PSBA 262
Noncash changes:

Interest 212
Cash flows:

Lease labity repayments. ao19)

Closing balance as at 30 June i

10825
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Queensiand Police Service
Notes to the financial statements.
For the year ended 30 June 2022

8 Key Management Personnel disclosures

(@) Details of Koy Management Personnel (KMP)

Key management porsonnel include those positons that had droct or indrect autiorly and responsiilly for planring,
drocting and controing t actitos of o departmont during 2021.22. The departmants rosponsiblo Miistr is the Miisir
for Poca and Conactve Services and Mister or Fire and Emergency Sorvices and is eniifed as partof the degartments.
KNP,

Futhor inormation on nen-Mnisteral KNP porsomel can be found in o body of the Annual Repart under the secton
rolatng to Exocutve Maragemrt.

Position Position Responsibity

[Resporstie 1o the overal sffcert and proper_administa

|cammisioner management and fnconingofthe dpartmert

[Rosponsible for providng the s¥alegic drocton. leadorship. overview and

[ Doty Commissioner - Southem QUesnSNd | g\jg of e detwveryof olicng services acrss he scuthern region

[Rasponsbl for providing the stalegi deocton, leadorsii, overview and|

[Desnty Commissioner - Regional Queensind |y 1, of e dalvery of policng servces acoss e sblewide rogions

[Doputy Commssioner - Crme, Counler Tererksm [Responsible Pr Fie proviion of specalst polca sewies witin ol
Jand Specatst operations |aopartmont

[Deouty Commissioner - Svatogy and Carporals _[Responsible o 1o provision of statgy and cporats senices witin ol
[servees jsspartmont

Thoro wore two independant extomal mombers ppontod [0 the QPS Board of Nanagoment during 2021.22. For 2021.22
oo extomal momber rocaved 8,514 (202021 $4,000) in romunoration and one' member was. remunerated by o
Dogartmont of Transpertand Main Roads. Thero wero no oher on-<asis.

(b Remuneration policies

Ministeial remuneration entiements are outined in the Legisative Assembly of Queensiand's Members’ Remuneration
Handbook. The department doos not boar any cost of remuneration of Minstafs. The majory of Miistoral entfomonts aro
paid by the Legisativo Assambl, wih the ramaining entomants boing provided by Mistorial Sorvcos Branch within the
Dopartment of the Pramior and Cabinet. As al Ministors aro roported as KMIP of the Guosnsiand Govemment, aggrogate
remuneraton expenses for al Mnsters is dischosed in the Quesnsiand General Govemment and Wrole of Govemment
ConsoldatedFinancal Statements, which ao publshed as part of Quoensiand Treasury's Ropor on Ste Finances.
Romuneration palicy for the departmant’s other KNP is set by the Quasnsiand Public Service Commission as providod for
under the Public Sarvce Act 2003. Infvidusl remuneraton and ather tems of empkoyment forthe KMP are spechied in
‘omployment cantrack.
Romunoration expenses for KNP comiri the olowing components:
+ Shortterm empoyee expenses including:
~ satries, alowances and leave onilomorts eamed and axpansed forthe onto year o or hatpartofthe yoar
during which he amployoo was a KIVP; and
- nonmonatary benafts - may incudo provison of amotor vehicle an ffnge benefs tax applable (o banefis.
+ Longtem amployas benefts nchudo amounts expensod inrospoct of g sorvico leave erilemoris oarned.
+ Posl employment benefts inchue amourts expensed i fespect of employer superannuain cbigatons.
+ Terminaton benefts includo paymentsin fou ofnotice on terination and othe kump sun soparatan enillements
(excludng annual and long service leave enttements) payatle on emmination of mploymen o acceptance of an ofer
oftrminatn of employment

No KNP romuneraton packages provids forperfermance or bonus payments.




image31.png
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

8 Key Management Personnel disclosures (continued)
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(@) Relatod party transactions with poopidontitos roatod to KMP
There were no malerial relatd party ransactons associated wi the dopartment's KMP during 2021-22 (2020-21: i),
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Queensland Police Service
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
000 5000

9 Supplies and services

Convactars

Materais

Ropairsand maintenance

Transkr costs

Trave

Commurications

Accommodatin and pubic ubes *

Minor quipment purchasos

Oparatng loase rontals

Crimirac search foes.

Outsourced works

Computing facites management

Postago

Managementfecs.

Other 4947

Total 223

* Offca accommodation and employeo hausing Payments for nan-specalisad commercal offco ccommodaten undor o

Quoensiand Govemmnt Accommodaton Offic (QGAO) Famewark and rosidontal accommodation propories undor o

‘Govemment Employes Housing (GEH) program arse from non-baso amangemaris. wih the Dopartmont of Enorgy and

Putiic Works (DEPW), who has substartiv substiulon rght over ho assets usod witin theso schomos. Payments aro

oxpensed as incurred

‘Accounting Policy - Operating lease rentals
Oparating loaso payments aro roresentativ of the patem of s doived or ho leasod assats and are expensed i the.
pasods n which they aro incured

12053
4138
w7
7085
25457
33491
30288
7593
23848
9538
26388
1126
2071
20778

10 Other expenses

Audtions * 31
Insurance promiums QGIF 7748
Insuwance promiums-othor 20
‘Sanvices raceived below fir value ™ w741
Other fiiy
Total FIAET)

* Total audit fees quoted by the Queansiand Audit Offics for e 2021-22 inancia stalements are estimated o b $352,000
(292021:5352,000)

* Inciuded in the 2021-22 Sarvicos receved beow far value figur is $18.3m (2020.21; $148m) representig costs for
services mainy incurred by QH and the Queensind GWN provided o he GPS fefer o Noke 6).

Accounting Pocy - Insurance

The majorty of the department’s nan-curent physical assels and cther risks aro nsured Trough the Queensiand
‘Govemment hsuranco Fund (QGIF) wih promiums boing paid on a fis ass ssmant basis. For igation purposes, undar the.
‘QGIF policy,the department weuld bo able 19 Gaim back, loss a $10,000 doducte, the amount pad b succassfulHigants.
The departmont pivately insuros i Al-wng plts.

The departmenthas no contingent fabiies which would have a matera impact an e inbrmation dscosed n the 2021-22
fnencia satoments.

Accounting Policy - Servicas received fres of charas, below fa value or for nominsl value.
Contibutons of sorvices are racognised anly i he sorvices woukd have boon purchasd f they had not been denated and
i far valuo can bo measurod ralably. Whero i is the case, an equal amountis recognised 2s a fevenus and an
oxponsoin e Statement of comprohansive ncame.
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Queensland Police Service
Notes to the financial statements.
For the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
000 5000

11 Receivables

Gurrent

Trado dobtors 18824
Loss: Atowance fo impaimant bss. 35)
TETm
68T recavatio 4800
p—
Anualloave reimbursamonts 6085
Long sorvica leave rambursoments. 7731
Aopropriaton revenue racavable * 37t
Loans and advances 4
Equiy adjusment receivable ™ 1982
otner 728
St
Totat =

* Appropriaton reverue recaivable incdes defit suppor Rnding (refer toNota 4).
= Equy adustmentreceivable incudes funding or the purchase of new avistion assets (referto Nole 4).
Policy - Recaivables.

Trade deblors are racognisad t the amounts due at he time of sse or sarvic deivery Lo the agread purchaselcantact
orice. The department’s standard settemen torms is 30 ays fom the invoice date.

Oer raceNables generally arie flom ansactions culside the usual operatig actiies of the degariment and are
rocogrised at thei assossed vabies.

ecounting Policy - Impairment of recsivables,
The degartment has caculatod the allowanco for mpaiimerd based on AASB 0 Financial hstuments and has used fistorical
data o calculto istorical I atos and ho Halm expoclod crodi losses which providas o basisfr the calclaion o .
akowance for impairment loss. The allowanco for impaimment roflects Hotime expected crodi kossos and incomeralos
reazanableand supportable arvard-oaking hiarmatian. Economic changes mpacing the depiatments deblors and rolevant
ndusty data aso form part o te dogartment's impaiment assessmor.

Whero tho dopartmant delamines thal an amount owing by a deblor bocomes uncolbctble (afe the agproprats dobt
rocovery actons ave occumod), e doblis wilton-ff by drociy raduchg o rocaivable agans tho oss alowanco. Whero.
he amountof deb wrilen ot exeeds the kss sMawance, the excass & racagrised as an mpaimert oss.

‘Accounting Poicy - Greditrisk exposure of eceivables
The madmum exposure to cradi sk at balance date forreceiabiss i the gross camying amauntof hase assels.

The department uses a provision matrk lo measir the expeciad cred losses on trade and other dablrs. T calculations.
roflocthisorical obsorv defaul rates calulatod using rodi bssos exporianced on past ansactons durig the last S years
procading 30 Juno 2021, Tho hstoral dofaul rates aro then adjusied by reasonable and supportable forwardkoking
nformaton for expaced changes n macroaconomic indcators 1l sfectthe fulure recovery of tose receivabies. For he
department, 2 crange in the CP rte s delermined to be the most relevant fonward-caking indicalr for trade and oher
doblors. Tho istrical dofaul ratos ar0 ad)ustod based on oxpeciod changos 1 that indicatr.
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Queensland Police Service
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

12 Intangible assets

Sofware  Software Total
purchasod  intomally
goneratod
202 2022 2022
000 000 000
Grass vake s179  1ses41 182347
Loss: Accumulatod amortisaton 5121 - (154,483
Reconciliation
Oparning tatance 1035 788 16943 25800
Acquisitons : s prey 5219
Transfes in from other Goverrment agencies (PSBA) 203 5078 1 5297

Gming bance R R e

Software  Softvare  Software ol
purchased  intormally workin
gonorated  progress.
2021 221 201 2021
000 so00 000 000
Gross vakio 2953 58,600 16943 78,508
Loss: Accumuiatod amartiaton (919 __ (50808 (52.129)
1035 T2 oo 25560
Reconcifition
Opering batance 563 wm 0201
Acquisitons - 14 6310
Transfersin from other Governmant agandies (PSBA) - % 132
Transfors botwoen classos. - (150)
Amrtsation

Chosing balance

‘Accounting Policy - Recoanition thresholds for intangible assets.

Intangblo assels with a cos or othr value 0qual 1o or i axcss.of $100,000 aro caplaksod fr financial reporting purposes in
the year of acquision. llams purchasad or acquired for a lessar vake are expensad in the year o ccuiion. Any Vainng
cosk ar oxpansed as incured.

- Amortisation of intang
Allintangiio assaets aro amortisad on a saightlino basis over thei ostiralad usalu o against an 8% - 20% amortisaton
e

fecounting Policy - mpaimsnt of intangible sssets
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13 Property, plant and equipment
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13 Property, plantand equipment (continued)
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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13 Property, plantand squipment (continued)
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13 Property, plantand equipment (continued)
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

‘Accounting Policy -Depreciation of propert, plantand squipment
Land i not deprocaied as i has an unimiedusoful e,

Property. plant and squipment.s dopraciated on asiraightine basis 5o 2 o alocato the nt cost o revakied amountof each
‘assol lss s ostmaler residual vaue,progressively over 1 estmated usafullfe b the doparmont.

Assets undor consiruction (workin-pr0gross) are not depracited untl they have reached thek savioo delvery cagacly.
‘Servie delvery capacty relates to when consircton s complele and the asset s rstput 1o use o s stalled eady for use
I accordance with s nondd applcaton. Theso assels afe then rocassifid o o rolavan casses witin property, plant

and aquipment.

Where assets have separately dentfatie componans thal are subject to regular replacement, hese companents are
assgned uselulves disinctfrom the asset 1o which ey rlate and aro deprocialed accordingy.

‘Any expendiure that increases the orignally assassed capacty or servce potentalof an asset s capialied and the now.
dopreciable amauntis doprociatedover the remaiing usel e of the asselto th dopartmort.

Major spares purchased specifcaly or paricular assets are captalsed and doprocalod on the same basis as the assot o
Which they ralat.

For each cass of degreciable assel the ofowing depreciaon rates are used:

[Class. Deprocation rate (4

[Busdngs T 10]

[Hortago and cutural T3

[Plantand oquipment 705

[Vajor plant and squigment S0

[infastnctr T 263
Account sirment of property, plant and equipment

Al roperty, plant and equipment assets aro assessed fo indcators of imparmant on an annual basisor, Where the assel i
messured at13i value, 1 ndicatorsof & change n far vaueiservice poentalsince th lastvaliatin was complted. f an
ndicator of possble impaimant axsts, the agency delormines the assals recoveratle amount. Any amount by which the
assats camying amount exceads the ecoveratie amaunt & recarded  an imparment oss.
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14 Righteof-use assots and lease liabilites.
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14 Right-of-use assets and loase libilitios (continuod)
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20 Financial instruments (continued)
Financialrisk management

@

Risk axposure
Financal rsk management is implemoniod pursuant 1o Govemmont and QPS poicies. Thase polces focus on M

npredictabity of fnancial markets and sesk 1o mininise pokntal adverse effects on the fnancial pedomance of e

department.

Tho departments acties expase 1o a variety of nancia risks as solout n the folowing abbs:

[Risk exposurs _[Dofinition [Exposur.

[Credirisk [Credi i axposurs refer o he Siuaton Whara Ta[The deparimant & exposad o cedh 1ok
|department may ncur financial koss 2 a resul ofraspectof s recaivables (rfer Nota 11).
Janother party 1o a francal instrument faiing to|
Jsischargo thi obigatin.

[Daudty ek [Cauilly vk _refers to The Siuaton whers Tia[The depariment & axposad 1o Tqudly 7K |
[dopartmont may encounter dificuty in  mestinglrespectof it payabies (refr Note 15)
Jobigations associated wih fnancil iabis tat aro
Jsatiod by doivoring cash or anathor francalassot.

Waratrer [T Ak thal fho fa vako or fulure cash flows of 3[The deparmant s SXposed B Rk Tvough furs|
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[market prices. Market ik comprises thes tpes o
s curncy sk, introstrato isk and othr prica ris |
imerest rate sk s the rsk ha the far value or fturs
lcash fows of a financial instrument W fuctuate

lacauisitons in foreign curoncy incluing arcat |
(e dopartmont s exposed 1o ntorestrate rsK|
[trough i leases and cash daposied i nterest
lboaring accouris.

[because of changos inmarkot inbrost ates.

®)

Risk measurement and management stratogios.
T departmont measures isk oxposuro using a varaly of methods a folws:

[Risk exposur _[Wessurement method |Risk mansgemenisirisgies
[Credirisk [Rgeinganabsss. [The depariment manages cred feX Tvough s e o1 @ cedl managemen
Joamings atrek [sraeay. This svategy ams to reduce the expostre b cred defaut byl
[onsuring i e deparimert invesis in secire assels and maniors al funds|
Jowed on a timly basi. Exposure to credi ik is manitred on an ongoig|
Jbass.
oy ik [Sensiviy anavss o deprimant marages WUl ek o e me of 3 iqud]
[ management sitogy. This stategy aims 1o reduce the exposure o iquilty|
ik by snsuring e dopariment nas suffcent funds. avaiati to moel
lemployee and suppier obigatons as they fal due. The & acheved by|
isuring hal minmum Jevels of cash are hokd wiin the varus bank
laccounis so as to makch the expected duraton of the various empioyee and
[suppler tabites.
etk rrest v sensitvy _[The deparment doss ol undatake any hedging  reaion b Fiarestate K|
Janaysis Jand manages s riskas partof the dspartments overal iy managemen|
Jstatogy.
etk Exchangs ra sersiiviy [The degariman doss ol Underiake any hedging n eaton 1o sxchanga rais|
Jaraysis and manages s fsk as parl of the daparmants overal Kkl

|management siatogy. The_dopartment may explro hedgng optons. in
[patnorshio wit Quonisand Treasury whare s commercaly banefcial todof
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Notes 2022 2021
000 000

17 Other currentliabilites.
Curent
Uneammed raverue 880 1=
Provion{or caims 24 1
Equty Windcaual Payatie a3
ol 1430 I

18 Rolated party transactions with other Queensland Government<ontrolled ontitics.

The depariment’s pimary onging sources f g ¥om Govemment for s servces a0 ppeopeationaverse and squy
iecions both uhich are proveies n cash via uesrsand Traasury.

The department has receva below fa vakie sevces s disciosed n Notes § 10 which nces $16.848m r 212122
(202021 $16.352m)forthe GWN manages by o Dapatment of Eneray and Puble Works (DEPW),$1.326m r 202122
(202021 $1.4831m) br ¥ s $0.250m for 2021.22 o Qd St Arcives.

19 Commitments.

Capital expenditurs commitments.

(Capal sxpendiurs commimentsinchsiv ofronracovere GST, contracid br at aporing dats bt nct ecogrisedinthe
‘ccouns are paybe 2 folows:

Buikinas
e 1y nze s
Total R N—
[ p—

ot erited s mset
Lot T yeur it an Syes 73

Tou - a— i
Jr——

freaiyyiey 25015 .
Lo T year et pun Syeas Sesea :
o Tt

iancies

freriar i ssst

Lrra  your et o ten Syeas o

ot

20 Financial instruments

Financislinstrument stegoriss
The depariment has the lowingcaiegorie of nanial asses ad fnancial labtis:

Financislszsste
can 583 s
Recaiasies st amorisad cost:

Reconass " 165564 836
Tou S17.13 a7z
Finsncis lsbiltis

Finncil fabases ot amrtsed cost.

Pajaes 15 2739 7081
o ey Srost

Nofnancil assesor nancialbifes have been ofset and presarid netnthe Siaementof fnacial posion

‘Accounting Potcy -Finsncis instrument
Recogneon

Fnancial assets and fanci labifes ar recognised inthe Sstament of fnancial osfion when 1o department becomes
parytothe convactual roveions of e ianciasvument.

The aparmant s not ersred i transacsons f specuive o hadgng pUpGsEs in 2021.22. The depariment ks
nancel ssats ssefie st vabe hough £ proh o oss.
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20 Financial instruments (continued)
(@ Uquidityrisk - contmctal maturty of Snanci liabiitis

The folwing table sets ut e uiiy rsk o fnancil isbiis hell by o degartment. I represerds the contactual maturly
of nancallabites, cacated based on undiscountad cash lows relatng to he kslis a reporting dae.

202 Payabio
Financia abitios Noto| <Tyear | Tayears [ >Syears Tomr
soo0 | oo | oo so00
[Paabies S YY) - - 279
[Como taits i3 1LY ) EE) Tosaz
ot wsis] 5o
T Py
Noto| <iyear [ Fayeas | >syeurs Tour
s | so | s s
FEN ) - - EXD]
T T es0l soml 30w 5T
7N 23 W73 o572
2022 2021
000 5000
21 Schedule of administered items
Administared rovanues
Aproeaion rvenue 2 725
Taxes, oos and s 2811 13412
Gt 28 iz
Toul Za% Tasrs
Administorad expansos
Grank and subsidies : 725
Translorsof Admnistarod incame b Govemmant 29% 13954
ot 12938 1ast9
Adrinistarad sssots
Curront
Cosn 1639
Racanabies _ o
Totl currant sssats 72
Adrinistored liablitos
Curont
UndaimadMonies o Remitb Treasury 1,068 20
Payatiols Govamment 559 2
Total curnt lsbibties oot Tas2

“ The degartment periodcaly trasfors & he Quesnsiand Govemment the amaunt of allcash colcted i respect of
Adminidered revenue.
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21 Schedule of administered items (continued)

‘Accounting Policy - Admiistered transactions and balane
Tho doparimont administers, bu doos nol contral, cartan rasources on behaf of the Govommert. I doing 5o, L has.
rosponsiikty and is accourtablo o adminitoring realod ransactions and fams, bu doos ot have the discreton b daploy
he resurcee fo the achievemant of he department’ objecives.

Administored uansactons and balancos ae nol sgnifcant in compason © the dopartments overal financal
berformancaffnancal posion.

Accountng polcies appkcable Lo adminiskred ilems are consistent wih the equialent pokes for controled Homs, urless
herwise staad.

22 Trusttransactions and balances

2022 202
000 000
Trustassats
Curent
Cash 7262 0282
Total current assets AT 50282
Trustliabites
Current
Payatios 7262 s0282
Total current lisbilitias 47262 5028

The Quesnsiand Audt Offcs has performed an aui of the departments st ransactions for 2021-22.

‘Aceounting Policy - Trust ranssctions and balancas

The department undartskes ceran trstos transactons and maintins relted balances on behall of varous partes (6.0,
‘@i or funds saized Fom alogad it actlos, held pending detominaton by a cout s wollas uncaimed and rotumed
QPS chodues).

A8 ho department performs only a custodal ok in espectof theso transactons and baknces, they are notrecogrised h o
‘dopartmont' fiancal stalements but ra disciosod in thes noos for the informaton of usors.

23 Significant financial impacts from COVID-19

Duing o 2021-22 financial yoar $98.1m (2020-21: $81.6m) has boon recogrised by the department n osponso to COVID-
19. This inchudes employee costs $46.6m (2020.21: $44.6m) and supplls and sorvios costs $21.9m (2020.21: $15.8m).
T akso includes the mpact on pandomic leave allorded b polco offcars and stafl members which is expoctad 10 b
approximataly §29.6m (202021 521 2m).

24 Events occurringafter balance date

There were o other avents occuring afer batance date that management considers woukd have a matera impack on the
nformation deckosed i thesa fnancal siatements.
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25 Budgetary reporting

Statement o comprehensive income Variance Budget Aduat Variance
note 202 222
000 000 000

Income from continuing operations.

Roproprationrovenue 0 2496168 2573818
Usor charges and foos 250) 168450 188,738
Grants and aher conrbutors 3215 o712
Oterrovenue 25(0) 2305
Totalrevenue Zaiesez
Gans an disposal 5277
Gains on revaluaton of assets 250) 35,077
Totalincome from continuing operations 285,648
Expenses from continuing operations
Emoloyoo expenses. 25(0) 2100814 2229508 sa892
‘Supples and sorvicos: 250 2818 wsr 4131
Grans and subsidios 6525 6361 a6
Doprociion and amortsaton azisr 1z am2
Financa costs 204 212 )
Othor oxporsos. 28162 27,130 (10%2)
Total expenses from continuing operations. Zroo73s. asasds 5%
Operating rosul for the year
“Total other comprehensive income. 250) p———— T —
Total comprohensive income. 104860 08680
Explanation of major variances.

25(a) Aogrceriaton revenue increase & mainy relald to the receiptof addiional COVID-13 reated inding (§55.2m) and
‘ddionalservics evenu for et support(§22.8m),

25(0) User charges and foes varianca is mainly e 1o revenua being Hgher than anticpated for Securty Services 1or
Government chent ($6.4m), 0r Service Lovel Agremens rolatng 10 ICT goods and sevices provided 1o extomal
‘agencies (54.6m). Spacl Sorvicos pary relatng 1o polco prosence al organised ovonts and road escors (54 2m)
‘and Crmina History Checks (83.2m)

25(c) Othorroveruo varanco i mainly duo 10 rovenus roconv from Molor Accident Insurance Commission (MAIC) for rcad
Safoty iniates (80.8m) and recovere for sotwaro bcenises used by other agencis (55.6m)

25(d) Totat assots have incroasod in vauo by $140.6m as a resul of rovaluaton complelod by Austals Assot Advisory
Group (AAAG) of fand and buldingsin the Southarn Rogon, QPS. Hoadguartors and the Bisbano City Watchhouso,
airrat and indexation changes 0 fand and bukings ouslo of Souhom Rogion. A amount of $36.0m was frst cfsol
agains decrement baknces carmed farward Fom provious years and recognised as gans on revaluaton in the
dapartmont's proft and loss. Tho balancing incromants otaling $104.6m have boan ranslarad 1o the dapartments
‘assatrovaluaton supls.

25(e) Employee expenses variance is mainly due 1o addional expenses ncurred for COVID-19 comphance activies
(546.8m),prodominately ovortimo, staf mombor wagos and st alowancos.

250 Supples and senices variance is mainy due 1o addfonal expenses incurred for COVID-19 comphance acthles,
prodomanatly travel and accommodation and parsonal prolecive oquigmont ($21.9m). amouy and uniform
‘consumablos, predominately tasors and body worn cameras and unibrms (§18.7m) and ofhor costs 10 support
rontine operations inching poperty,plant and ecupment (olice stations and Bciles), perating motor vehices and
1GTand communicaton refated cost.
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25 Budgetary reporting (continued)

‘Statementof financal position Varisnce
ote
Assets
Current assets
Cash 25)
Rocoables 0
Inventores
Other currant assets 250

Non-curront asets classod a held forsale
Total current assets

Non-current sssets
Intangiblo assols
Preperty, plant and oquipment 20
Rghtoluso assols
Total non-current sssets

Totalassets

Lisbilties
Gurrent lsblties
Payables. £
Accrued amployes benelts
Loase labilles
Other curentlabiios
Total current lsbilties

No-current lsbilties
Loaso labiies
Total non-current isb

Total kabiltes

Equty
Total squity

Explanation of major variances

Budget Actual Variance.
202 202
000 s000 000
583 (3764)
105 188564
0615 7067

20670 st
1821471 5%
78

o EX)
_zazsim 4476
sos o
76870 @1e2)
2212 %)

e 714
Tmaois p— )
oats ass 2500
Gy 85 2500

15933 139483 (19.367)
1965848 _ 2080190 114302

v —

25(0) Cash varance is mainy dus o he tming of recaiving agpropraton reverws fom Quaensiand Traasury.

25(n) Rocolvables variance is manly duo to defct support funding (§22.5m), equly adjusmont rocoNable fo o purchase
of aviaion assets (521m), an increase for annual feave reimbursements ($10m), provisin of ICT sewvices o OFES.

($6m) and OAS (§3.3m).

25() Other curent assets variance is mainly due to capal prepayments for purchase of aviaton assats (521m).
250) Propory, plant and equipment varanc is mainly dus to ncreasos in assol vauatons impactng assots witin e knd

and bukdings assot classas.

2500 Payatlos varance s mainly dus 1o the tming ofpaymonis o crodiors.
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25 Budgetary reporting (continued)

Statement of cash flows: Variance Budget Actual Variance.
note. 222 222
so00 000 so00
Gash flows from operating activities
Inflows:
Servcaappropratonrecaits 250 24168 254480 8292
User chargas and fees 25(m) 178,455 185,253 5758
Grants and ather contbutons 13,434 11971 (1.469)
GST inputtax crdits from ATO - 0248 50248
GSTcallected rom customars - 17201 17201
Otner wor 26 (16:378)
Qutons:
Employes expenses 250) @81 @2013) (76.1%9)
‘Supples and servicos. 25(0) woree 12434 (64,505)
Grants and subsides ©52) (1) (836)
GST paid o supplors: - (63799) (@5.7%9)
GST remited 10 ATO - (17,201) (17201)
Other 10,485) (8391 11,004
Not cash prowdod byl(used In) operating activies e 57,03 [CEDN
Gash flows from investing activities
Inlows:
‘Sales of poparty,pantand squipment 1710 278 501
Outfons:
Paymonts for property, plantand squipment  25(5) (156057 (128.589) 2488
Paymants for ntangibles - (5.2:8) (5.26)
Not cash providod byi(usod n) investing activitos Gasan (st 332%
Cash flows fram financing actviies
nflons:
Equiy injectons 6971 4373 (58)
utions
Equiy windrawals (@73 (87 &
Firanco loaso paymans. 8441 a9 o18)
Not cash provided byi(used n) financing activitios 4796 (1313 16.108)
Notincreasai(docroase) in cash (14130 @aen) (261)
4309 &7 19118
5924 15303 5379
Cash atend offirancial year 39,605 839 5769
Explanation o major variances
() Servco appropriaon recails varanco is manly rolated 10 tho rocei of addtional COVIDAS rolated unding for
complanca acvies.

25(m) Usor charges and foes varianc & mainly &uo 10 ravenue flom socurty savicos, sorvics level agreements, spocial
‘sorvices and criminal istory chacks boing highor than antcpalod as a rasul of theso servicos rotuming coser 1 pro-
pandomic savioa lovas.

25(n) Employee expenses variance is mainly due 1o addifonal expenses for he polce resporse o COVID-1S rebted
acvtas (predominataly border corrol nd quarantine) for overti, alowances and impact an annua eave due to
‘adiitonalparddomic leavo afordied b polcofficors and staf mormbors for o by 30 Juno 2022.

25(0) Supplies and senvicas variance is mainy ue ko addional expenses for he polce responsa to COVID-19 rebted
acivies (redomirately bordar conirl and quarantine), for vavel and accommodation and personal prolecive
equipment.

25(p) Propory, plnt and oqubment varance s mainly o 10 equisment acquisfons bohg bwer than anicpalod as a resull
of supplychain challongos.
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25 Budgetary reporting (continued)

Schedule of administered toms. Variance
ote

Administored rovenucs.

Taxos, foos and ines )

Otner 250

Tota reverue

Administered expanses

Transfes of administered revenue 1o Goverrmert
Tota expenses.

Administered assets
Current

Camn

Recaivables

Tota curert ssses

Administered lsbities
Current

Payables

Translers to Govemmert payable
Tota curent fabites.

Explanation of major variances

Budgot Actuat Variance
222 22

S0 000 000

11,085 1251 1478

2410 28 1.982)

Taas T wess o)

13445 12938 o)

o 12938 (507

1,889 183 (58)
SRS . ERECEECIE . NNCRIENE )
8% Ter 5

1202 1,088 @
18 55 55)
7856 EX7id Bs)

25(a) Other varance & mainy due 1o diferonco i classiication of he e fom fes and oretures revanue bewoen Ofer
and Taves, fes and fnes. Total adminitered revenue inchudes weapors bcensing fees, fnes and fotfares revenue

and unciaed mones.
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‘These general purpose fancial stalements have been prepared pursuant o S62(1)of the Financial Accountabitty Act
2009 (he Act), section 38 of the Financial and Perfcrmance Management Sandard 2019 and oher proscrbed
requirements. n accordance with5.62(1)b)of the Actwe carty that in ouropion:

(2) the prescrbed requiements for estabishing and kespig the accouns have been compled wih in al materal
respects and

) o fimancial statoments have boen drawn up Lo prosont a e and far view, in acoordanco wih proscrbed
accountng standards, of the transactions of e Queensiand Polce Senvice for the fnancia year anded 30 June 2022
‘and ofthe financil positon ofthe department at the end of it year; and

The Commissionoras the Accauntablo Offcorof the dopartment acknowlodgosrospnsiilty undor 5.7 and s.11 of the.
Financil and Perormance Management Siandard 2019 for the establshment and mainterance, n al materal
rospecks, of an approprate and effctiv systom of inlomal conols and risk managomant processas Wi respoct 1o

o Wora—s

K Caro APM Whrmmer
B.Bus (Acclg), Grad Cort Prof Acclg, MIPA, GAICD.

Accauniable Offcer Chief Fnance Oficer
Cammissioner

onf6r8 1 AR o2 )% ) 22
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To the Accountable Officer of the Queensland Police Service:

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

Ihave audited the accompanying financial report of the Queensland Police Service.
Inmy opinion, the financial report

@) gives a true and fair view of the departments financial position as at 30 June 2022, and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b)  complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards.

“The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of significant
‘accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management certifcate.
Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibiltes under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilties for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

1 am independent of the department in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia | have also fulfiled my other ethical responsibilies in accordance with the Code
‘and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

Ibelieve that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most

significance inmy audit of the financial report of the current period. | addressed these
matters in the context of my audt of the financial report as a whole, and in forming my.

‘opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,




